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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
City of Anniston, Alabama.

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information
of the City of Anniston, Alabama (the “City”), as of and for the year ended September 30, 2013, and the related
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the

table of contents.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implentation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Anditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the
financial statements of the Anniston City Board of Education, the Public Library. of Anniston/Calhoun County, and
the Anniston Museum Endowment Corporation, Inc., which represents 73%, 67% and 98%, respectively, of the.
assets net position and revenue of the component unit’s column. Those financial statements were audited by other
anditors whose reports thereon have been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts
included for Anniston City Board of Education, the Public Library of Anniston/Calhoun County, and the Anniston
Mussum Endowment Corporation, Inc., is based on the reports of the other auditors. We issued a separate audit
report dated June 16, 2014, on the Farley Berman Foundation, Inc., a discretely presented component unit and we
issued a separate audit report-dated June 16, 2014, on The MusAnn Corporation Inc., a blended component unit,
which is presented as a business-type activity of the City. Also, we issued a separate audit report dated January 23,
2014, of the financial statements of the Policemen’s and Firemen’s Retivement Fund, which represents 99%, 100%
and 100%, respectively, of the assets, net position and revenues of the fiduciary funds. We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable
to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of United States.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit fo obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement, ' '

a-



_An audlt involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the fi nancial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including_the assessment of the risks of
materlal misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.. In making those risk assessments

"~ the audltor considers the internal control relevant to the entity’s preparatlon and fair presentation of the financial

‘statéments in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the, circumstances, but fiot for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal .control. Accordmgly, we express no such opinion.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
sngmﬁcant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentatlon of the fi nanclal
statements : :

We beheve that the audit-evidence we have obtamed is sufﬁcrent and approprlate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion,

The financial statements of the Anniston Industrial Development Board and Anniston Museum League have not
been audited, and we were not engaged to audit these entities’ financial statements as part of our audit of the City’s
basic financial statements. Anniston Industrial Development Board and Anniston Museum League are included.in
the City’s basic financial statements as discretely presented component units and represent 1%, 2%, and less
than 1% of the assets, net position and revenues, respectively, of the City’s aggregate discretely presented
component units.

Opinion

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors except for the effects of such adjustments, if any;
as might have been determined to be necessary had the Anniston Industrial Development Board ‘and Anniston
Museum League financial statements been audited, the financial statements referred to previously present fairly, in-
all material respects, the financial position of the government activities, the business-type activities and the
aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information for
the City of Anniston, Alabama, as of September 30, 2013, and the respective changes in financial position, and,
where applicable, cash flows thereof, for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally ’
accepted in the Uriited States of America.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s discussion
and analysis, budgetary comparison information and schedule of pension funding progress on pages 4-13 and 55-56
to be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.  Such information, although' not a part'of the basic
financial statements, -is required by the Governmental Accountmg Standards Board, who ‘considers it to be-an
essential part of finaneial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,
economic, or historical context. We ‘have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which
consistéd of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide
any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not prowde us wnth sufficient evidence to
express an opmlon or prov1de any assurance.



Other Infa}jmation

Our aud:t was conducted for the purpose of forming opinionis on the ﬁnanclal statements that collectwely c,ompnse
- the City’s basic financial statements, The introductory section. and combining fund fi nam:lal statemeuts -as hsted in
the accompanying table of contents, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of
the basic financial statements, The accompanying schedule of expendltures of - federal awards is presented for
purposes of -additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular. A-133,
Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Orgamzanons, and‘is not a required part of the basu‘ ﬁnanCIa]
statements. : :

Thé,combining fund financial statements and schedule of expenditures of federal awards are the fesponsibility of
management and were derived from and reléte directly to the underlying accounting and. other records used to
prepare the basic financial staiements., Such information has been subjected to the suditing procedures applied in.
the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconcnlmg
such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements or the basic financial statement themselves, and other procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining fund financial statements and
schedule of expenditures of federal awards are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial
statements taken as a whole.

The introductory section, as listed in the table contents, has not been subjected to the auditing procedutes applied in
the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or pro\rlde any assurance
on them.

Other Re[inrting_ Requil;ed by Government Audlting Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June 16, 2014, on our
consideration of the City of Anniston, Alabama’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its,.
rompllance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial -reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial repomng
or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Audmng
Standards in considering the City’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

f/pmﬂéﬂ%ﬁé

Kemp & Associates, CPA PC
Anniston, Alabama
June 15, 2014



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS ' 'CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA

FOR THE YEAR END SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 .

This section of the City of Anniston’s (“City”) annual ﬁnancnal report presents our dlscusswn and analysis of the

City's financial petformance during the fiscal year ended September 30, 2013, We encourage readers to consider

the information presented here in conjunction with additional |nfonnat:0n that we have furnished.in the financial
_statements ‘and other supplementary mformatlon which follow this narratwe

Financial nghlights

o The assets and deferred outflow of resources of the Clty of Anmston (primary govemment) exceeded its
liabilities and .deferred inflow of resources by 80.88 million for the year ended September 30, 2013, The
assets and deferred outflow of resources of the City’s component units exceeded -their liabilities and
deferred inflow of resources by $29.13 million. Of the $80. 88 million in prlmary government net position,
$2.05 million (unhssigned net position) may be used to meet the govemment s ongoing obhganons 10
citizens and creditors. A

e At the close of the fiscal year, the City’s governmental funds reported a combined ending fund balance of
$19.12 million. The combined governmental funds fund balance decreased by $10.38 million compared
with the prior year. Of the $19.12 million in fund balance, $8.22 million is available for spending at the
government’s discretion (unassigned fund balance). ‘

e The general fund ended the cuitent year with a fund balance of $8.43 million, down from $10.13 million in
2012. The 2013 ending fund balance of the General Fund represents 24.3 percent of total general fund
operating expenditures.

o Inthe fiscal year 2013, the City of Anniston realized a deficiency of operational revenues over expenditures
in the general fund of $15,195. However, the fund balance of the General Fund decreased by $1,699,937
due to net transfers from the general fund to capital projects funds and debt service funds.

Overvi.ew of the-i“inancial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City of Anniston’s basic financial
statements. The basic financial statements consist of three components: 1. Government-wide financial statements,
2. Fund financial statements and 3. Notes to the financial statements (see figure 1}, The basic financial statements
present two different views of the City through the use of government-wide statements and fund financial
statements. In addition to the basic financial statements, this report contains other supplementai information that
will enhance the reader’s understanding of the financial condition of the City of Anniston. The following diagram
-shows how the required components of this annual report are arranged and relate to one another.



' MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA

FOR THE YEAR END SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Required Components of Annual Financial Report

-(Figure 1) :
. _ N Basic
Management's Discussion Financial
And Analysis : Statements
I l I
Government- Fund Notes to the
{wide Financial Financial Financial
Statements Statements Statements
Summary —_— " Detail

Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide statements report information about the City as a whole using accounting methods similar to
those used by private-sector companies. The statement of net position includes all of the government’s assets and
deferred outflows of resources and liabilities and deferred inflows of resources. - All of the current year's revenues
and expenses are accounted for in the statement of activities regardless of when cash is received or paid.

The government-wide financial statements of the City are divided into three categories:

Governmental Activities — Most of the City’s basic services are included here such as the police, fire, public

works, parks and recreation, and general administration. Sales, use and property taxes; charges for -

services; and state and federal grants finance most of these activities. The Governmental Activities include
Blended Component units. '

Discretely Presented Component units — The City includes other legally separate entitics in its report
including the Anniston City Board of Education, Public Library of Anniston/Calhoun County, Anniston
Industrial Development Board, Farley L. Berman Foundation, Inc., Anniston Museum Endowment
_ Corporation, and Museum League. The City is financially accountable for these entities.

Blended Component units - The City includes other legally separate entities in its report including the
Public Building Authority and the MusAnn Corporation. The City provides administrative services for
these entities. ' '

a



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA

FOR THE YEAR END SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Government-wide Financial Statements

Governmental Activities and
+ Component Units

Measurement Focus:
Economic Resources

| Accounting Basis: Accrual

Statement of Net Position|

+Assets :
+Deferred Outflows

of Resources

-Liabilities

-Deferred Inflows

of Resources

Net Position

Statement of Activities

+General Reverues
-Net Program Expenses

Change In Net Position

The statement of net position includes all of the government’s assets and deferred outflows of resources and
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources except fiduciary funds. The statement of activities presents information
showing how the government’s net position changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position
are reported as sopn as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash

flows,

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the City’s most significant funds — not the
City as a whole. Funds are accounting groups that the City uses to keep track of specific sources of funding and
spending for particular purposes. Some funds are required by federal or state law while some are required by grant

~agreements. Other funds are established to control and manage City resources designated for specific purposes.

The City uses three types of funds:

=

Governmental Funds — Most of the City’s basic services are included in governmental funds, which focus

on (1) how cash and other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash flow into and out of the
funds and (2) the balances left at year-end that are available for spending. Because the focus on
governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is useful to
compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better

understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing decisions.



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA

FOR THE YEAR END SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

' 'Propmetaty Funds — The City of Anniston mamtams one type of proprietary fund. An Enterprise fund is
used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the govemment-wide financial

" statements: The City of Anniston uses the enterprise fund (Musann Corporation) to prowde support to the
Anniston Museum of Natural History, a department of the City.

Fiducia}y Fund - The ﬁduciary fund statement reﬂects the 'ﬁnancial relationship with the Policemén’s and
Firemen’s Retirement Fund which provides benefits exclusively for certain public safety employees, This
fund is excluded from the City’s govemment-w:de financial statements because the City cannot use these
assets to finance operations, In 2011, the City began to present the appropriate portion of the municipal
court transactions as an agency fund to delineate the fiduciary nature of those transactions.

The following diagram presents the major features of the fund financial statéments including the types of
information contained therein.

Fund Financial Statements

Governmental Funds Fiducjary Funds




MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS * CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA

FOR THE Y'EAR END SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Notes to the Fmanclal Statements ‘
The notes provide additional information that is essential for a full understandmg of the data provtded in the

. governinent-wide and fund f‘ nancial statements The notes to the financial statements follow the bas:c ﬁnanclal _
statements

Othe_r Information

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain supplementary
information that should be considered in the evaluation of the City’s financial position.

Government-wide Financial Analysis

"The government-wide financial statement for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2003, was the first of a new
format of reports for the City. The accounting year 2004 and subsequent years follow this format. The changes in
the financial statements are in compliance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No.
34. The City has accounted for all infrastructure assets and has included them in this presentation. The following
summarizes the Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities for the Primary Government's activities:

Condensed Statement of Net Position
As of September 30, 2013 and 2012

Governmental Actlvities Buslnehs-type Activities Total Primary Government
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Current and other assets $ 23,309,688 $ 34850229 $ 367987 % 334308 § 23677675 §  35184,537
Capital assets, net of ’
accumulated depreciation 106,518,736 101,663,482 12,919 £4,545 106,531,655 101,678,027
Total Assels . § 129828424  § 136,513,711 5 380506 5 348,853  § 130,209330 § 136,862,564
Deferred Qutflows of Resources $ 3,505 % 3Nt - § - 3 - % 3,505 § 311
Current and other liabilities - $ 4,324,509 $ 5753911 $ 2,780 3 2,987 $ 4,327,289 $ 5,756,898
Long-term liabilities, net of . : _
current portion 42,808,791 - 43,706,673 - “ - 42,808,791 43,706,673
Total Liabilities § 47,133,300 § 49460584 § 2,780 % 2987 5 47,136,080 5 49463571
Dct‘erred Outflows of Resources $ 2189564 § 1207177 % - % ) - 5§ 2,189,564 3 1,297,177
‘ Net Position
Net investment in capital $ 68208277 § 62,102,711 % - % 14545 % 68208277 § 62,117,256
Restricted 10,552,209 20,043,743 78,983 78983 . 10,631,192 20,122,726
Unassigned 1,748,579 3,613,207 299,143 252,338 2,047,723 3,865,545
Total Net Position $ 80509065 § 85750661 § 378126 § 345866 § 80,887,191 $ 86,105527




MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA

FOR THE YEAR END SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Condensed Statement of Activities -
_For the Years Ended September 30, 2013 and 2012

Governmental Activities ‘Business-type Activities Total Primary Government
2013 2012 . 2013 2012 2013 2012
Revenues
Program Revenue : '
Charges for services $ 3,073,699 § 3913663 $ 63,085 § 61442 § 3,136884  § 3,975,105
Operating grants and S - -
contributions 1,790,751 1,307,807 - 48,000 1,838,751 1,307,807
Cap grants and coniributions 288,490 1,263,348 288,490 1,263,348
General Revenue ’ ‘ - -
. Taxes 29,334,307 26,761,895 29,334,307 26,761,895
Licenses and permits 4,161,137 3,720,538 4,161,137 3,720,538
Iavestment carmings - 165,495 103,927 564 754 166,059 104,681
Other revenues 1,561,050 926,897 584 909 1,561,634 927,806
Total Revenues 40,374,929 37,998,075 112,333 63,105 40,487,262 38,061,180
Expenses
General govemnment 9,381,738 8,241,230 9,381,738 8,241,230
Jadicial 297,390 601,910 297,390 601,910
Public safety 15,036,733 13,398,677 15,036,733 13,398,677
Public works 10,063,393 9,804,978 - - 10,063,393 9804978 -
Housing and development 1,158,816 1,353,385 1,158,816 1,353,385
- Culture and recreation 7,914,729 8,028,283 - - 7,914,729 8,028,283
Interest 1,563,165 1,949,756 1,563,165 1,949,756 .
Business-type activity :
MusAnn Corporation . 80,072 70,114 80,072 70,110
Total Expenditures 45,415,964 43,378,219 80,072 70,110 45,496,036 43,448,329
Change in Net Position $(5,041,035) $(5380,144) § 32,261 § (7,005 $(5008,774) $(5387,149)

The assets and deferred outflow of resources of the City of Anniston (primary government) exceeded its liabilities
and deferred inflow of resources by $80,88 million as of September 30, 2013. However, the largest portion (84.30
percent) reflects the City’s investment in capital assets less any related debt still outstanding that was issued to
acquire those assets. The City of Anniston uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently,
these assets are not available for future spending. Although the City’s investment in its capital assets is reported net
of the outstanding related debt, the resources needed to repay that debt must be provided by other sources, since the
capital assets cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. Additionally, $10.63 million represents net position that
are subject to external or Council placed restrictions on how they may be used. The balance of $2.05 million is
unrestricted. ' :

Financial Analysis of the City’s Funds

As noted earlier, the City of Anniston uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compiliance with finance-
related legal requirements.



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA

. FOR THE YEAR END SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Governmental Fuids :
The focus of the City of Anniston’s govemmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outﬂows
‘and, b_alances of -usable resources, Such information is usefsl in assessing the City of Anniston's financing
requirements. Specifically, unassigned fund balance can be a useful measure of a government’s ne¢ resources -
available for spending at the-end of the fiscal year. The General Fund is the chief operating fiind of the City of
“Anniston. At the end of the curfent fiscal year, Unaesigned fund balance of thie general fund was $8,221,3'78,.
compared with $9,917,677 at the end of 2012, As a measure of the general fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to
compare unassigned fund balance to total fund expenditures. Unassigned fund baiance represents 23.75 percent of
total general fund expendttures at the end of 2013.
General Fund-Fund Balances
For the Years Ended September 30,2013 and 2012

2013 2012 Change
Norispendable § 213,097 . 8 . 216,735 $ - (3,638)
Unassigned 8,221,378 9,917,677 {1,696,299)
Total Fund Balances T 8433475 S 10,134,412 "% (1,699937)

Enterprise Fund

The City's enterprise fund provides the same type of information found-in the government-wide financial statements,
but in more detail. The net position of the enterprise fund was $378,127, an increase of $32,262. In accordance with
. GASB 61 and effective October t, 2012, the City determined that the MusAnn Corporation, Inc. is a blended
component unit, The MusAnn operates the retail store at the Anniston Museum of Natural History, a department of
the City.

Enterprise Fund-Net Position
For the Years Ended September 30, 2013 and 2012

LS

: 2013 2012 Change
Restricted $ 78,983 $ 78,983 $ -
Unassigned : 299,143 266,882 32,261

T 378,126 § 345865 % 32,261

General Fund Budgetary Highligits :
The City of Anniston adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general fund and other funds. A budgetary
comparison statement has been prowded for the general fund to demonstrate compliance with this budget.
General Budget Fund
For the Years Ended September 30, 2013

Variance

Original Final Actual From-Fina!

Budget Budget Amount Budget
Revenues | $ 35,255,491 $ 35,255,491 $ 34,631,950 $  (623,541)
Expenditures 34,190,741 33,538,811 34,616,755 (1,077,944)
* Other Sources (Uses) (1,286,245) {1,938,245) (1,715,132) (223,113)
Total _ § (221,495) & (221,565) 8§ (1,699,937) § (1,478,372)



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA

' FOR THE YEAR END SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Capital Asgset and Debt Administration

Capital Assets: The City of Anniston’s investment in capital assets for its governmental activities as of September
30, 2013 totals $106,518,736.(net of accumulated depreciation) and for its business-type activities as of September
30, 2013 totals $12,919 (net of accumulated depreciation). These assets include infrastructure, buildings, land,
'machmery and equipment, facilities and vehicles, as Wel! as the collection at the Anniston Museum of Natural

History.

Additional information about the City of Anniston’s capital assets can be found in Note 6 in the Notes to the
_ Financial Statements. :

Capltal Assels
As of September 39, 2013 and 2012

- Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total Primary Government
2013 : 2012 - 2013 2012 2013 2012
Land § 8925355 % 8734825 $ 8925355 § 8734825
Collegtions 8,342,992 8,329,797 8,342,992 8,329,797
Construgtion in Progress - 25,316,119 - 25,316,719
Building and improvements 64,639,239 31,270,439 30,884 30,884 64,670,123 31,301,323
Machinery and Equipment 13,933,702 14,147,885 27,924 27,924 13,961,626 14,175,809
Improvements other than
buildings 3,161,685 2,318,767 3,161,685 2,318,767
Infrastructure ’ 105,429,666 105,429,666 105,429 666 105,429,666
. 204,439,639 195,548,098 58,808 58,808 204,498,447 195,606,906

Accumulated Depreciation {97,913,903) (93,880,%04) (45,889) (44,263} (97,959,792) (93,925,167)
Capita) Assets, nel $106518736  $ 101,667,094 § 12919 § 14545  $106,531655 § 101,681,739

This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings and building improvements, improvement other than
buildings, system improvements (drainage and streets), machinery and e(juipment, park facilities, roads, highways,
bridges, and collections at the Anniston Museum of Natural History. Major capital asset events during the fiscal
year were the completion of the Calthoun County Department of Human Resources (DHR) Building and the Justin
Soltohub Justice Center, :

Long-term Debt: As of September 30, 2013, the City of Anniston had bonds and warrants outstanding of
$37,744.562, of which $31,170,000 is bond debt related to the blended component unit, the City of Anniston Public
Building Authority (the “PBA”). The PBA debts consist entirely of building revenue warrants whose debt service
obligations are covered by the fevenue generated by executed leases on the related buiidings. In addition, the City is
participating ‘in regional economic development that specifically funded certain infrastructure at Honda
Manufacturing of Alabama’s plant in Lincoln, Alabama, fifteen miles away. The amount outstanding for this
commitment is $276,251. '

During the fiscal year ended September 30, 2011, the City took advantage of recovery zone interest incentives
offered by the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act. The maximum- stimulus was utilized and general
obligation warrant series 2010B was issued in the amount of $5,380,000, the amount apportioned by the State of
" Alabama through Calhoun County. In addition, and at the same time of the 2010B in October, 2010, Series 2010A
was issued in the amount of $2,060,000, which included refinancing Series 1998 warrant principal of $440,000,
thereby liquidating that warrant. The purpose of these combined warrants was to construct a state of the art aquatic

LAY



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS : CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA

FOR THE YEAR END SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

complex capable of generatmg substantial fees while closing three antiquated facnhtles Approxir_nately $1.2
million of this issuance was dedicated. to public works street 1mprovements The net negative cash flow will be
marginal due to revenues and efﬁ01enc1es gamed ' ' '

The Clty of Anmston created the PBA to facﬂltate the construction of the Calhoun County Department of Human -
Resources complex on a federaily declared Brownfield site, approprtately remediated. The PBA issued a warrant
in February 2011, in the amount of $16,170,000 (DHR Series 2011). The lease payments to satisfy the warrant
debt service will be paid directly by the State of Alabama to Regions Bank, trustee. The building was occupied
during fiscal year 2013, ' .

“In August, 2011, the PBA issued $15,000,000 of revenue warrants for the Justin Sollohub Justice Center. This new
municipal complex houses the municipal court, police department, and municipal jail, replacing a sixty year old
facility. Alabama law permits the usage of the corrections fund to pay for the court and jail components and it is
anticipated that approximately 63 percent of the debt service, in the form of a lease payment to the PBA will come
from the corrections fund, while the remaining portion of the lease will be paid from the general fund. The bmldmg
was occupied during fiscal year 2013.

Outstanding Debt and Long Term Liabilities
As of September 30,2013 and 2012

Governmental Activities 2013 2012
Series 2011 DHR $16,170,000  $16,170,000
Series 2011 Justice Center 15,000,000 15,000,000
Recovery Zone 2010 5,380,000 5,380,000
GO Recovery Zone 1,575,000 1,820,000
Less discounts (418,730} {(441,604)
Plus premiums ' 38,291 - 40,543
Capital leases 563,271 763,053
Honda assistance 276,251 394,990
OPEB obligations 4,216,151 3,437,783
Compensated absences C 2,327,007 2,555,647

$45,127,241  §45,120,412

State statutes limit the general obligation debt a governmental entity may issue to twenty percent (20%) of its total
assessed valuation.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budget

With the closure of Fort McClellan in 1999 along with completion nearing on the Veterans Memorial Parkway that
will connect Interstate 20 to U.S. Highway 431, Anniston has an opportunity to capitalize on significant
development at the former fort as well as surrounding areas. "Commitment. to this effort was recently further
cemented by the passage of the McClellan Area Regional Development Compact. This compact forms a partnership
among other local entities in a regional effort to commit resources to achieve development goals at McCleflan.

12



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA

FOR THE YEAR END_ _SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Further capltahzmg on the unlque landscape of Anmston the Coldwater Mountam Bike Trail is a 4,000 acre tract of
land owned by the A]abama State Lands Division of the Department of Conservation and Natural Resources. Once
completed, Anniston will be ‘home to: one of the premler ride centers in the country offering up to 68 miles of trails
with varylng levels of difficulty. Rlders are already travehng to the area from all over the country with 25 miles
a]ready in serwce

With the completlon of the Justin Sollohub Justice Center and the Calhoun County DHR Fac:llty (the debt service
for which is paid by the State of Alabama), the City has added approximately $30 million in assets while helping in
the effort to revitalize the downtown area. Anniston recently designated its ‘downtown as a local historical district.
This will help in attracting new businesses downtown and capitalize on the rapidly expanding bike community,

The City adopted an FY 2014 general fund budget of $35,075,835. The following are a few key factors that were
taken into account when building the budget

. Flscal year 2013 was the first full year of a 1% sales tax increase. In preparing the budget for FY 2014, the
City was able to project these revenues more accuraiely base on the prior year actual. The City will
continue to benefit from these additional revenues.

e Revenues in the Parks & Recreation Department were projected with more accuracy for FY 2014 after
observation of the first full year of operations at the new Aquatics Center in FY 2013,

e The City was able to reduce budgeted salaries and benefit expenditures approximately $638,000 as a result
of employees who took advantage of a one-time early retirement incentive. Less any new hires, these
savings will carry forward into future periods.

Questions or Comments

Any questions or comments about this document should be addressed to Brandon Phillips, Interim Finance Director,
email: bphillips@annistonal.gov.

a



BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

43



STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 .
- . Primary Governinent -
" Governmental Busfnéexr-Type .
Activitles Activities Tolsl
ASSETS
Cursent Assels .
Pooled cash and cash equivalets 5R19.495 300,204 6,119,899
Investments 3,329,102 T 3329002
Cash bonds on hand 18160 - 18,160
Taxes reesivable, nia 3,045,809 . 2,045,809
Accounts receivable, net 182,63) - 182,631
Notes receivable 2,520,700 - 2,520,700 .
Due from ageney fund 6,333 - 30,353
. Duc from othet governments 70,300 - 711,700
Inventory 45,928 67,236 113,164
Prepaid items LA 547 180,287
Othur assels - - .
Total Currenl Asseis 14,883,613 367,987 13,251,605
Nan-current Assets
Resiricted Assets:
Cash f,580.262 - 6,389,262
Investments 1.520.537 . 1,520,527
Deforred charges - bond issuance costs 316,281 . 116,281
Capital assels L
Mon-dgpréciable asscta 17.268,346 R 17,268,346
Depreciable assets. net of accumulsted depreciation #9,250 390 12,91% 19,243,109
Totat Non-cirrent Assets | 14,44, 806 12,919 114,957,728
TOTAL ASSETS 129,#28.424 3K0.906 130,209,330
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES .
Deferred charges an refunding 3,508 . 3,505
129,831,929 380!90 130,212,833
LIABILITIES
Current Lisbilities
Satarius end benefits payable 298,705 1,234 299,939
Accounls payablu k05,589 1.546 807,138
Accrued liabitiios 729,847 . 729,847
Cash bend Habibiues 123.783 - 123,785
e 1o agesey find 48.132 - 43,112
Uneamed revenues - -
Loan Payabl . -
Capital lvases pavabl: - curem 217842 - 217082
Bonds payable - current ELUTD000 - 1,070,000
Nel other post employmem benefits obligation RLLATH ELERIH
Intergovemmemat agrecment - currem 131,340 . 131:340
Compunsated absences payable Sl129 - 511,12y
Total Currenl Liabllities 4,324,509 270 4,327,249
Leng-term Liabilities )
Capital leases payable (ngt of gument ponion) 34338y - 345,389
Campensated absences payable - long term [RIEX-Y - LE)5.R28
Net cther posi emploeyment benefits obligation 3HZR.051 3,428,051
Intergovemmextal agreement - long §erm 194,91 . 144911
Bonds pavable (net of current portion) 36,674,567 - 36,674,562
‘Tatal Loag-term Liabilitier 42808,791 . 42,808,791
TOTAL LIABILITIES AT133.3H10 2,780 47,136,080
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
fneome ¢amed in Future penods 2.130,6H0 - 2,130,000
Fees collecied in advancy 59,554 - 59,554
Unavailable revenue-property taxes - -
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 1i89.504 - 2,189,564
NET POSITION .
Capilal assots, net of related debt 63.208.277 . 68,208,277
Restricted for:
Judicial 67,637 - 67,637
Public safuty 1,623,941 . 1,623,941
Road improvements 5,109,877 - 5,109,877
Culture and recreation 22,007 78903 106,200
Housing and developmem 344,323 - 544,323
Capits) projects 3,179,124 - 3,179,124
Debt service . . .
Grants - . -
Endowmunt fund - - -
Commiined for:
Capital projects, - - -
Unassigned 1,748,379 299,143 2.U47,722
TOTAL NET POSITION HO.5019.065 378,126 RO NBT, 191
TOTAL 2% Mll929 330,906 130!2|2.ﬂ35




CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA

Awniston City Publle Library Anniston Farley L, Anniston Museum
Board of of Anniston/ Iadustrial Berman Endowmen| Museum
Education Cathoun County Dev, Board Boundation, Inc, Cor i League Total

2,478,133 265,631 307,118 723,967 58,583 5,808 3,339,209
57555 95,267 261,744 . 17,027 77429 1,665,022
. 34 - - - - 4
2,990,705 - . - - . 2,990,705
46,953 - " 2,570 - - 49,523
- 16,961 - 749 - - 17,710
50,603 - - 30 19400 - J0431
3,623,949 377,803 370,862 221316 1,249,412 83,24 132 666
1,714,044 - - - - - 1,714,044
1,404,061 5907 . 8,702,434 - - 10,132,404
14,853,619 397,721 - 51,130 - - 15,302,470
17,971,726 423,628 - 8,753,564 - - C27,148918
21,595,675 Ra1,521 570,862 8,980,8R0 1,249.412 B3.2M4 35,281,584
23,395,675 401,521 370,462 8,980 880 1,249412 $3,234 15,281,584
1.204,769 - - 5,437 - - 1.210.206
L) 455 47.154 - 2,586 - 61,196
. - - 2367 2,361
6,604 - - - - 6,604
48,571 - - - - - 48,571

. . . . - N a4
1,271,400 47,154 - 10,390 - - 1,328,944
(2,605,822 - - 8 2,605,422
2,605,822 - - - - 2,608,822
3877222 47,154 - 10,390 - 3,934,766
2,214,569 - - - - . 2,214,569
2,214.569 - - g - - 2,214,569
13,603,289 423,62H - 51137 - 14,078,054
- - - §,702,439 1,249,412 - 9,951,846
- - 21,369 - . - 21,369
56,653 . . - - - 56,653
1,714,044 - - - - 1,714,044
139,957 - - - - - 134,457
- 95,267 - - 95,267
1,989,941 2315472 549,493 216,919 - #3,234 3,075,059
17,503,884 744,367 570,862 3,970,490 1,249,412 33,234 29,132,249
23,595,675 801,521 570,862 8,980,850 1,249,412 83,234 33,281,584

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

PRIMARY GOYERNMENT:
Governmenta! Activities

General govermment

Judizial

Public safoty =

Public wotks *~ -

Housing and development

Culture and recreation

Interest en debt and other expenses
Total Governmental Activities

Business-Type Aclivifies
MusAnn Corperation

Component Units
Arniston City Board of Education
Public Library ¢f
Annigton/Calhoun County
Anniston Industrial Dev. Board
Farley L. Berman Foundation, Inc
Anniston M End C

Program Reyenues

Ret {Expense) Revenue and Changes

In Net Position

Primtary Government

Anniston Mugesm Leagoe

Total Component Units

.Chargu for
Services, Sakes Opgrating Grants Capilal Grants Governmental Business-Type
Expenses and Fines and Conlributions and Contributions Attivilies Activities Total
9,381,738 - - - (,331,738) - (9,381,738)
297,390 293,434 22,155 - 18,199 - ]3,!99
15,036,733 423,103 560,539 180,000 (13,933.041) - (13,933,041)
10,063,393 856,815 30,867 108,490 9,067,221} - (9,067,221)
L 158,816 - 1,237,140 - 78,324 - 78,324
2,914,129 1,500,347 - - (6,414,382) - (6,414,382)
- 1,563,165 . - - (1,563, 165) . (1,563,165)
45,415,964 3,071,699 1,790,751 283 490 (40,263 024) - (40,263,024}
80,072 63,185 - - - (16,887) (16,887)
25,090,297 1,787,082 14,165,301 432,069
1,300,171 47,270 2373 301750
216,193 29,822 154,700 B
92,415 - - -
32,130 - 43,273 -
26,731,206 1,864,174 14,587,015 733,819
GENERAL REYENUES:
Taxes:
Propeny 4,884,703 . 4,884,703
Sales 20,807,544 - 20,807,549
Licenses and permits 4,161,137 - 4,161,137
Alcohotic beverage 147,524 - 147,524
Other 3,494,501 - 3.494,53|
Grants and contributions not restricted for spegific programs - 48,000 48,000
Interest camed 165,495 564 166,059
Investment eamings - - -
Miscellaneons 1,561,050 584 1,561,634
Total General Revenues 35,221,959 49 148 35,271,137
Change in Net Position (5.041,035) 12,261 (5,008,724}
NET POSITION, BEGINNING #5.750.661 345,865 &6, 105,526
Restatement of et positien due prior period emor (209,.561) - (20%.561)
Restatement of mel position duc implementation of GASB 63 and 65 - . .
NET POSITION, BEGINRING, RESTATED £5,550,100 345,865 85,495,965
NET POSITION, END 80,509,065 378,126 0,587,191




CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position

Compongnt Unils

Public Library Anniston Farley L. Anniston Museum Total
Annigion City of Anniston! Industriat Berman Endowment ' Museum Component
Board of Education Calhoun County Dev. Board Foundation, Jac, Corparalion League Units

(8.705,843) - - - - - {8,705.845)
- (727.410) - - - (38,457} (766,267}
- . . (31,671} . - (31,671
- - . - {42,415) - (42,415)
(8,705,R45) (727.410) - (31,671 (42,415) {38,857 (9,546, 198)
4,472,140 - - - - - 4472740
§.637.656 - - - - - - . 1,631,656
94,129 - - - - - 96,129
71.972 - - - - . 61.972
157,260 673,700 - 33,690 6.099 - 870,74%
27.608 2,282 2RE2 105 - 331 33138

- 13,502 - - 137,348 - 150,940

378,412 6,607 - 26,578 - 12,858 424,455
6,811,777 696, 1K1 2812 60,373 143,947 13,189 7,747,719
(1,574.068) . BLRY) 2,812 28,702 100,032 (25,668} (1,195,419
19,417,943 785,596 564,050 8,941,784 1,14% 380 108,902 30,970,659
(39,991) - - - - - (39,991}
19,377,952 783,550 568,050 8,941,783 1,148,180 104,902 30,930,668
17,503 8&4 754,367 570,862 §,970.450 1,249,412 - 83,244 29,132 249

See accompanying notes to the basic financiat stalements
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BALANCE SHEET -
GOVYERNMENTAL FUNDS

SEPTEMBER 34, 2013

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Investiments

Cash bonds on hand

Taxvs reecivable, net of allowance
Accounts roceivable, net of allowance
Notes neecivable, net of allowance
Propaid itoms

fvenlorics

Orther Assels

Dug fiom other funds

Duc from agency fund

Duc from other govemments
Reustricted cash

TOTAL ASSETS
LFABILITTES

Salaries and benefits payable
Accaunts payable

Retainage payable

Accrued Jiabilities

Cash bond liabilities

Due 1o other funds

Dl_:u to agengy fund

TOTAL LIABILITIES

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
[ueome camed in future periods
Fees collected in advance

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
FUND BALANCES

MNonspendoble
Prepaid iems
Inventosiss
Restricted for:
Judscial
Public safuty
Road improvements -
Coun activitivs
Cullure and recreation
Housing and develepment
Capital projects
Cemnvined for.
Culture and recreation
Capital projects
Assigned for:
Howsing and development
Unassigned

TOTAL FUND BALANCES {DEFICIT)

TOTAL

Geaeral

Public
Buyilding
Authority

Maujor Special
Revenue
Fire Tax Fund

1,637.4H6
3,326,442
2,045,309
174,558
167,169
45928
2,428,366
30,353
183,729

3,289,100

1,182,264

18,065
3,146,264

10,044,170

3,289,100

4,346,793

298,183
561.714

385,614

4,430

134,492

129,342

19,235

1,550.14F

59,554

263,874

5314

59,554

167,169
45,928

8,221,374

3,025,026

8,434,475

3,025,226

4231479

044, 70

3,289,100

4,346,793




CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA

Major Special Major Special Major Special Non-majer Tolal
Revenue Revenue Drup Task Governmenial Governmenial
. CDBG HOME Foree Fund Funds Funds
19,453 19,583 - 4,143,043 5,R19,495
- - - 140,723 4,849,620
- - - 18,160 18,160
- - - - 2,045,809
- - - 3,673 182,631
748,794 1,220,009 . 558,897 2,520,700
- - - 12,571 179,140
R - - . 43,928
63,353 - 240,333 70,373 2,802,425
- - - - 30,353
13,043 209,700 94,331 102,832 711,700
- - - 153 898 6,539,262
837,643 . 1,539,292 3345664 5404070 25,795 832
51 - - - 293,705
4,231 2,145 . 928 805,589
- - - 21,320 407,434
- - - 123,785 23,785
- 425,331 543,667 1,380,180 2,802,425
- - - 48,132 43,132
4,753 427,476 543,667 - 1,580,845 4,486,070
41,794 1,220,009 - 168,207 2,130,010
- - - - 59,554
41,794 1,220,609 - 168,207 2,189,504
- - . 167,169
- - . - 45,928
- - 67,637 67,037
- (209,001) 1,832,944 1,623,941
- - - 875,734 5,107,217
- - - 27,307 21,307
- - - - 3,025,236
- - - 960,358 960,358
- - . 153,898 153,893
01,096 (108,193} . 561,420 544,123
. {824,184) 7.397,194
91,096 {108,191 {209,003) 3,655,118 19,120,198
837,643 1,53%,292 334!664 5,404,170 25,795,832

See nccompanying notes to the basic financiol statements
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RECONCILIATION OF TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL

SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

~ CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA
- FUND BALANCES TO NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

TOTAL GOYERNMENTAL FUND BALARCES
Amounts reported for govemmental activities in the statement of net ];osiﬁun am different because:

Capital assols used in governmental activities are not financial resources and therefors are not reported
in the funds
Cost
Less: aceumulated depreciation

Nei ather post employment benefits obligations are not due and payable in the curent period and
thersfore are not reported in the funds.

Long-term liabilidies are not due and payable in the ¢urrent period and there for are not reported in the
fund statements.
Compensated absences
Intergovommental agreement
Bonds payable
Capital fases
Unemortized deferred items
. . Unamortized bond issuance cost
1 .
M Accrued interest

NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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204,432,639
. (97,913,903

{4,216 153

2,327,007
276,251
38,125,000
563,270
(383,943}
(316,281)
322,413

19,120,198

106,518,736

4,216,152}

(40,913,717

80, 509!065



STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

REYENUES
Intergovemmental
Fines and forfeitures
Charges for serviees
Taves
Licenses and pormits
Interest eamed
Miscellancous

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Cumrent:
Genural govenmeny
Tudicial
Public safely
Public works
Crlure and recreation
Housing and development
Capital autlay
Erebt Service
Principal
Interest
Bond issue costs
Fiscal agent fucs

TOTAL EXPENDITURES .

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES

OYER-EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Proceeds from sale of assels
Capilal Jeases

Transfers in

Transfers out

TOTAL OTHER FINARCING

SOQURCES {USES)

NET CHANGE IN FURD BALANCES
FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), BEGINNING
FRIOR PERIOP ADJUSTMENT

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), END, RESTATED

Publie . Major
Building Special Revenue
General Authority Fire Tax Fund
218,067 . .
16,503 . .
2,080,053 . .
27,736,640 - #d6, 191
4,161,137 - .
2,192 11,996 12,242
396,358 901,618 -
14,631,950 913,614 $58,433
7,779,149 - .
293,979 - .
13,025,063 - .
6,160,324 - 787,782
6,571,571 - -
780,664 7.597.396 93,409
- 1,400,869
- 57,526 -
34,616,755 1,055,791 221,191
15.195 (8,142,177 {22,758)
68,495 - -
21,549 - .
§34.56% R22.412

(2,339,744) . .
(1,715,132 /22,412 -
{1,699,937) {7,319,765) {22,758)
10,134,412 10,344 941 4,254,237
4,434,475 1,025,226 4,231,479




CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA

Majer Specinl Major Special Major Special MNon-major Total
Revenue Revenue Drug Task Governmental Governmental
CDBG HOME Force Fund Funds Funds
284,885 894,381 143,343 $33,565 26719241
. - - 435,135 761,638
- - - 232,608 2,312,061
- . - 751476 29,334,307
. - . - 4,§61,137
3,721 3062 - 113,021 165,234
1,100 - 52,000 175,106 1,526,182
289,706 297,443 200,343 2,548,311 40,339,799
- - - 450 7,119,599
- B - - 295976
- - 714,643 442,505 14,182,211
. . - 127,312 1,135,413
- - - 954,998 7,532,569
222,67 834,681 - 59,016 1,116,064
R B - 1,676,663 10,148,132
- - - 585,070 585070
- - - 356,729 1,757,593
. . . 7,833 7,833
- - - - 57,526
222,367 834,681 714,643 4,270,576 50,596,003
67,339 62,762 (514,300) (1,722,265} (10,256,204}
. - - - 68,495
- - - - 21,549
- - 369,620 2,154,237 3,880,837
- - - (1,591,093} (3,840,837
- - 369,620 613,144 90,044
67,339 62,762 (144,68} (0,109,121} {10,166,161)
233318 {176,955} {64,322) #,764,239 29,495,920
(209,561) - - - (209.561)
91,096 (108,193) (202,003) 3,655,118 19,120,193

Sce accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

NET CHANGES TN FUND BALANCES - TOTAL GOYERNMENT
Amounls neported for govemmental aetivitics in the stalement of activities are different because:

Govarnmentat funds Teport capital outlays as cxpenditures. However, in the staement of activilies the cost of those assets is allocated
over their estimates usefid lives and reporied as depreciation vxpense. This is the differenes betweea depreciation expense and capital
outlay in the cutrent period.

Capital outlay

Depreciation oxpense

The net effect of various miscetlaneous transactions involving capital assels (i.e. sales, tade-ing and donations) is 1o decrvase net
position.

The receipt and repayment of bonds, notes payable and capital lease principal is a revenue and expenditure in the govemmental funds,
but the activity i and d long-term liabilities in the statement of net position.
Bond principal paymens
Amortization of bond issuance cost
Amodtization of bond discounts
Capital lcases
Capital lease pringipal payment
I | .

M B g principal payment
Some oxf reperied in the of activities, such as acerued intercst, p ¢ ab and contingent liabilities do not
requine thie use of current financial resources and therefore are not reporied as expendi i the gov b funcls.

Actrued interest
Compensated abscnees

Other post employmient bengfits obligations did not require the use of current financial resources and therefore were not reporsed as
expenditures in govemmenial finds in the Statement of Net Pasition.

CHANGE 1N NET FOSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIYVITIES

(10,166, 161)
10,148,132
(5,262,964) 4,885,168
(33,626)
245,000
(24,139)
(20,828)
(21,549)
221,338
118,738 518,504
304,809
228,640 533,449
(778,369}

&) D'JI,UJS!

See accompanying nates to the basic financial statements
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STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL - GENERAL FUND

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA

REYENUES:
Taxes
Sales and use
Gener! property taxes
Heverage taxes
Annisten Housing Authority
Water utility fees
Cigarcite and tobacca
Gasoline
Dingo
Lodging
Renmal
Busingss
Total Taxes

Licenses, permits and fees:
Business licenses
Othe license and penaliics
‘Yotal licenses, pormits and fies

Intergovernmental
Police administration
Planning grant
Federal surplvs property
Total Intergavernmental

Charges for services;
Garbage fees
Airport evenue
Rental income
Recreation department fecs
Publi¢ works reeeipts
Fublic safety’ receipts
Total Charges for Services

Fines and forfeiturcs
Police court fines and fees
Totab Fines and Forfeitures

Other revenue:
Interest on imvestments
Miscellancous revenue
Total Gther Revenue

TOTAL REVENUES .
EXPENDITURES:

GENERAL GOVERNMENT
Finance division
Genernl division
City Coungil
Building maintenance
Trofessionat services
Utilitics
Projests
Wotknan's compensation insurance
Employer funded healtheare
Other insurance
Other boards and agencics
Miscellancous
TOTAL GENERAL GOYERNMENT

Yariance

Original Final Positive

I]uEI_E_e_I Budget Actual (Nf_ga_live)
29,190,000 21,190,060 20,807,549 (382,451)
4,141,000 4,741,000 4,884,703 143,703
150,000 150,000 147,524 {2.478)
5,000 5,000 5,140 140
510,000 510,000 519,873 9,873
300,000 300,000 287,543 {12,457)
360,000 360,000 154,718 {5,262}
65,000 65,000 46,300 (18,700}
£3,000 §5,000 91,783 6,783
420,060 420,000 429,025 9,015
148,725 148,725 162,482 13,757
27,914,125 27,914,725 27,716,640 {238,085)
3,350,000 3,350,000 3,289,001 (60,989)
307,610 907,610 £72,126 (35,484)
4,257,610 4,251.610 4,160,137 (96,473)
- - 7,200 7,200
32,000 32,000 30,867 (1,133)
- - 180,000 180,000
32,000 32,000 318,067 126,067
330,500 380,500 219,060 (6).440)
%340 59,340 59,037 (303}
1,330,650 1,380,650 1,158,302 {222,)48)
53,750 53,750 37,755 (15,995)
13,914 13,916 5,900 (8,016}
2,388,156 2,388,196 2.080,054 (308,102}
21,500 21,500 16,503 (4,997}
21,500 21,500 16,503 {4,997}
25,000 25,000 23.191 (1,809)
556,500 556,500 396,358 (160,142)
581,500 581,500 419,549 (161,951)
35,255,491 35,255,49| 34,631,950 (623,541
RIZA6S 819,465 851,238 (11,773
185,354 176,354 178,744 (2,390)
184,813 192,313 195,999 (3,680)
861,408 877,808 &75216 2,392
80,000 £0,000 189,500 (109,500)
41,000 41,000 43,975 (2,975)
1,100,365 1,100,365 608,055 492,310
400,06} 400,000 436,061 {3 6,061)
2,205,000 2,556,000 2872400 {316,410}
480,000 480,000 508,867 {28,867)
955,255 955,255 838,466 LE6,789
267,000 267,000 551,148 {284,148)
1,572,660 7,965,560 R, 149,679 {184,119}

See accom panying hotes to the basic financial statements
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STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL - GENERAL FUND

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA

PUBLIC SAFETY
Police
Municipal cowt
Detention facilities
Fire
TOTAL PUBLIC SAFETY

PUBLIC WORKS
General
Cemetery
Elcetrical
Engineering
Garge
Environmestal services
Streel depariment
Aiport
Planning .
TOTAL PUBLIC WORKS .

CULTURE AND RECREATION
Administration
Parks, facilities, and ulilitics
PARD programs
Park maintenance
Anniston/Calhioun Counly Library
Anniston Cily Board of Education
Fartey L. Berman Museom
.TOTAL CULTUR[‘E AND RECREATION

DEBT SERYICE . . toe
Principal
Tnterest
TOTAL DEBT SERYICE

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY} OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES AND (USES):
Proceeds from sale of capital asscls
Capital lease
Transters in
Trwnsfers oul:
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {USES)

NET CHANGE 1N FUND BALANCE
FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING

FUND BALANCE, END

Original Finnl Positive”
Budget Budged Actual liiu_gyive)
1,635,019 7.249.519 7424749 (175,230}
312303 86,803 293,979 (7,176)
550,183 507,685 325,631 {17,946)
5,346,622 5,063,872 5,183,783 (119.911)
13,744,629 13,107,879 13,428,142 (320,263)
443,447 498,939 507,249 (8.310)
74,519 78819 81,907 (3,088)
709,764 695,764 642,239 3,528
159,378 155,666 152,451 3,215
230,003 221,015 240,752 (19,737
1,187,861 1,175,361 L2479 (44,118)
3,093,814 2,794,642 2,960,296 (160,54}
71,832 95,282 90,254 5,028
364,109 323,579 340,781 (17,202)
6,339,747 6,044,067 6,285,408 (241,341}
929,820 910,020 1006988 (96.968)
2,444,410 2,483,810 1,541,705 {57,895)
353,226 353,226 393,426 {40,210}
$51,249 519,149 534,197 (15,548}
560,000 560,006 560,000 -
{455,000 1,455,000 1,576,600 (121,600
140,000 £40,000 C 140400 -
6,433,705 6,421,305 6,753,526 (33z,221)
34,180,741 13,538.811 34,616,755 (1,077,944}
1,064,750 1,716,680 15,195 (1,701,485)
- . 68,495 (68,495):
- - 21,549 (21,549)
970,000 990,000 '534.568 435,432
(2,256,245) (2,908,245) (2,339,744) (568.501)
(1,286.245) (1,938,245) (715,132} (222113
{221,495) {221,565} (1,699,237 (1,478,372
10,139,412 1,134,412 10,134,412 .
9912917 9,912,847 8,434,475

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION -
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA

SEPTEMBER 30, 2013
. Policemen's and
Munigipal Firemen's
Court Ru!_i_renwnl Fund
ASSETS
Cagh and cash cquivalents 115,734 452,020
Tnyestments, at fair yatue
U.8. Govemment obligations - 1,802,744
Municipal obligations - 88,059
Corporate bonds - 1,849,617
Intemational obligations - 85,835
Dromestic equily secuntics - 8,936,173
Intemational equity sceurities - 441,410
Colletive investment fund - 7963015
Timber - 907 881
Real estate - 1,052,734
Accounts reccivable - 330,756
TOTAL ASSETS x 115,734 23,910,246
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable £5,381 19,733
Due to general fund 30,353
TOTAL LIABILITIES 115,734 19,733
NET POSITION
Ne! Position Held in Trust for Pension Benefils (a schedule of funding progress is o
e : - ' 23,890,513

presented as requined svpplementary informiation)

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION -

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA

ADDITIONS
Consributicns
Employer
Employee
Total Contributions

Investment Earnings:
Tnterest
Dividend
Net appreciation in fair value of investments
Net gain on invesiment
Miscellangous
Total Investment Eamings
Less: Investment expenses.
Net Investment Income

Total Additions
DEBUCTIONS
Net depreciation in fair value of imvesiments
Administmlive expenses
Benefits paid dirceily to panticipants
Total Deductzons -
NET INCREASE IN NET POSITION

NET POSITION HELD IN TRUST
FOR PENSION BENEFITS

NET FOSITION, BEGINNING

NET FOSITION, END

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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Policenien's and
Firemen's
Retirement Fund

2,138,006
1,082,078
3,820,089

149,371
143,736
3,136,568
17,230
443
1,447,350
75,634
3,371,716

7,191,800

232,831
128,033
4,042,267
4!401, 13t

2,788,669

21,101,894

21,890,513



STATEMENT OF PROPRIETARY NET POSITION - CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2013
MusAnn
Cnrgnrah'on, Ine.

ASSETS
Current Assels

Cash & cash ¢quivalents 300,204

Prepaid expenses 547

Inventorics . 67,236
‘Tota) Curient Assels 367,987
Property and equipment, net 12919
TOTAL ASSETS 380,506
LIABILITIES
Curreal Linbilities

Accounts payable 1,546

Acgrued payroll and wilhheld taxes 1,234
Tofal Current Liabilities 3,780
TOTAL LIABILITIES 2780
NET POSITION .

Unrestricted 299,143

Temponarily restricted 78,983
TOTAL NET POSITION 378,126
TOTAL 380,906

Sce accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGE IN PROPRIETARY FUND BALANCES -
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

REYENUES
Sales
Donaticns
Interest income
Discounts Eamed
Other mecipls - Store

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Bank fees
Depreciation sxpense
Insnrneg
Miscellancons
Payroll expense
Postage .
Professional fees
Purchases
Rent
Sataries
Supplics

TOTAL EXPENDITURES
'CHANGE IN NET POSITION
NET POSITION - BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET POSITION - END OF YEAR

MusAun Corporation, Inc.

Temporarily

Uurestricted Restricted _Total
63,185 - 63,185
48,000 - 45,000

564 - 564
222 - m
6t - 362
132,333 . 112,333
1,766 - 1,766
1.627 - 1,627
305 - 305
q22 - 412
2,138 - 2,138
46 - 46
317 . 3,175
37,426 - 31426
7.800 - 7,800
23,722 - 13,922
1,645 - 1,645
80,072 - 80,072
32,261 - N 312,261
266,882 78,983 345,865
299,143 78,983 i 178,116

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

MusAnn

Cash Plows from Operaling Activities

Cash recgived from customers $ 63,547
Donations received 43,000
Discounts canied : - 222
[nterest received L 564
Cash paid for purchases {79,480
Cash paid for operating expenditures @179
Net Cash Flows (Used in} Operating Activities B9
Net Decrease in Cash (3,920)
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning 309,123
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End 300,204

Reconcilintion of Operating Income to Net Cash Flows from Operating Aclivities

Increase in Unrestricted Nel Position . 32,261
Adjustments to Reconcile Inerease In Unresiricted Net
Assets to Net Cash Provided By Operaling Acfivities

Depreciation and amorization 1,627
(Inoreasc) Decrease in:
Inventory {42,054y
Prepaid Bypenses {547y
Ingrease {Decrease) in:
Acconnts payablo (12)
Aceried payroll and-withheld taxes 196
- . - 41,182)

Net Cash [Flows (Used in) Operating Aclivities

3.921)

T4

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The financial staiements of the City of Anniston, Alabama (the “City™) have been prépared in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to governments. The
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (the “GASB”) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more significant of the City's accounting pohc:es
are described below.

A, Reporting Entity

The Clty of Anniston, Alabama, was incorporated in 1883 under the laws of the State of Alabama The City operates
under the Council / Manager form of government with a City Council consisting of five council members elected for -
concurrent terms of four years. One council member is elected at large by the qualified voters of the City and has
the title of Mayor. The City Manager is appointed by the Council and has full administrative authority for the
operations of the City, The City provides the following services to its citizens as authorized by its charter: public
safety (police and fire), recreation, water, and genera! and administrative services,  As required by generafly .
accepted accounting principles, the financial statements of the reporting entity include those of the City of Anniston,
Alabama (the “primary government”) and its component units.  The component units discussed below are
included in the City's reporting entity because of the significance of its operational or financial relationship
with the City. In conformity with generally accepted accounting principles, as set forth in Governmental
Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 14, as amended by GASB Statement No. 39, the financial statements of
the component units is discretely presented in the financial statements. Effective October 1, 2012, the City adopted
GASB 61, the Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus — an amendment of GASB Statement No. 14 and No. 34.

Discretely Presented Component Units

Included in the Separate Financial

Component Unit

Reporting Entity Statements
Because
The Anniston City Board of Education is the The bonded debt must be These audited financial
goveming board for the City School System. Eligible issued through the City statements are located at
voters in the City elect the members of the Board. The which the Council must Anniston City Hall.

City schools are fiscally dependent upon the City approve.

since the board cannot issue bonded debt directly.

The Public Library of Anniston and Calhoun
County receives a substantia} amount of financial
support from the City; however, they do not approve
the Library’s operations and capital budgets.

The Anniston Industrial Development Board is
ﬁscaliy dependent upon the City support to carry out
its mission.

The Farley L. Berman Foundation, Inc. is fiscally
dependent upon the City for its operational support;
however, the City does not approve the Foundation’s
capital budgets or operations.

The members of the
govemning board are
appointed by the City of
Anniston and the Calhoun
County Commission,’

The members of the board
are appointed by City
Council.

The City fiscally supports
the entity.
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These audited financial
statements are located at

_ Anniston City Hall.

These unaudited financial
statements are located at
Anniston City Hall.

These audited financial

statements are located at
Anniston City Hall.



' NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

CITY OFVANNISTON, ALLABAMA

NOTE |
, Disc'retely Presented Component Units (contmued)

Component Unit

* Included in the
Reporting Entity
Because

SUMMARY OF SIGN]FICANT ACCOUNTING POLIC]ES (contmued)

" Separate Financial
Statements

The Anniston Museum Endowment Corporation
exists only due o its relationship with the Anniston
Museum of Natural History, which is a department of
the City: however, the City does not fiscally support
its capital budgets or operatlons The entity year end
is June 30, 2013,

The Museum League exists only due to its
relationship with the Anniston Museum of Natural
History, which is a department of the City: however,
the City does not fiscally support its capltal budgets or
operations.

Blended Component Unit

Component Unit

* The Corporation sole

mission is to support the

- Anniston Museum of

Natural History, a
department of the City.

The Corperation sole
mission is to suppott the
Anniston Museum of
Natural History, a
department of the City,

Included in the
Reporting Entity
Because

These audited financial
statements are located at
Anniston City Hall,

. Thése unaudited financial
statements are focated at

Annisten City Hall.

Separate Financial
Statements

The Anniston Public Building Authority was
established to account for the construction and

The bonded debt must be
issued through the City

ongoing maintenance of City buildings. The Authority which the Council must
is fiscally dependent upon the City since the Authority approve.

cannot issue bonded debt directly.

Separate financtal
statements are not prepared.

The MusAnn Corporation, Inc, was established to
operate the retail store located at the Anniston
Museum of Natural History, a department of the City.
The Corporation’s operation is dependent upon the

The Corporation sole
mission is to support the
Anniston Museum of
Natural History, a

Museum’s staff. It is reported as a business-type department of the City.
activity,
B.. Government-wide and Fund Financiél Statements

These audited financial
statements are located at
Anniston City Hall and
included in the City’s
financial statements as the
business-type activity.

These statements report financial information for the City as a whole. The primary government and the discretely
presented component units are presented separately within these financial statements with the focus on the primary
government, The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement of
activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the City. For the most part, the effect of
interfund activity has been removed from these statements, Governmental activities, which normally are supported
by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are repotted separately from business-type activities, which rely to a
significant extent on fees and charges for support. '
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
B. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements (continued)

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment is
offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or
segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to those who purchase, use; or directly benefit from'goods, services,
of privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting
the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not included
among program revenues are reporied as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and fiduciary funds, even though the latter are
rexcluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual goveinmental funds are reported as
separate columns in the fund financial statements.

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reporied using the economic resources measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting, as are for fiduciary fund financial statements, although the agency fund has no
measurement focus. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred,
regardless of the timing of the related cash flows, Property taxes are recognized us revenues in the year for which
they are levied, Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed
by the provider have been met.

i
Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and

the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and
available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period. For this
purpose, the City considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current
fiscal period. Expenditures are generally recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting.
However, expenditures related to long-term debt, compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded
only when payment is due. Property taxes, sales taxes, intergovernmental grants, and investment income associated
with the current fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues
of the current fiscal period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is

received by the City.

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 33, “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange Transactions,”

the corresponding assets (receivables) in nonexchange transactions are recognized in the period in which the

underlying exchange occurs, when an enforceable legal claim has arisen, when all ehglbll:ty requirements have been
, met, or when resources are received, depending on the revenue source,

Ma_]or individual governmental funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements. The City
reports the following major governmential funds:

The General Fund is the City's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the
general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

The Public Building Authority Fund facilitates the construction and financing of major facilities for lease to
the City funded by building revenue bonds. : :

The Special Revenue Fire Tax Fund accounts for the collection of special tax and revenue restricted
expenditures for specific purpose.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA

FOR TH_E YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013
NOTE1 - - SUMMARY ‘(.)F SI_GN'IFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) .
C, Measurement Focus; Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presen'tation (continued)

The Specaal Revenue CDBG Fund accounts-for the collectlon of federal grant money ‘and revenue restricted
expendttures for specific purpose.

The Special Revenue HOME Conso_rtz‘um Fund accounts for the collection of fede;ral grant .money and
revenue restricted expenditures for specific purpbse.

The Special Revenue Drug Task Force Consortium Fund accounts for the collection of special tax and
revenue restricted expendltures for specific purpose ‘

The City also reports the f'oi]owmg fund types within the non-major governmental funds:

Debt service fund accounts for the repayment of principal and interest on the City's outstanding
- bond issues and other debt obligations of the City.

Special revenue funds account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are legally restricted to
expenditures for specified purposes.

Capital Improvement Fund accounts for the acquisition and construction of major facilities funded by City
operations.

Fiduciary Fund Type

The agency fund is used to account for the collection and disbursement of menies by the City Municipal
Court, such as traffic fines,

The Policemen’s and Firemen's Retirement Fund accounts for assets held by the City as an agent or trustee
to be invested and expended in accordance with the conditions of the trustee capacity. The City uses this
fund to account for the assets of the defined benefit plan.

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989, generally are
followed in the government-wide financial statements to the extent that those standards do not conflict with or
contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. Goveérnments- also have the option of
following subsequent private-sector guidance. for their business-type activitics and enterprise funds, subject to
this same limitation. The City has eleted not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance, :

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial
statements. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs reported for the various functions concerned.

When both restricted and unresfricted resources are available for use, it is the City’s policy to use 'restricted
resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.
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'NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS . ' CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA

-FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 1013

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contmued)
D. Cash and Investments
~ Cash consists of demand deposits, and investments consist of . government securities and certificates of deposit,

Cash balances and the requlrements of all funds are considered in determining the amount to be invested. Interest
eamed on cash and investments is recorded as General Fund revenue and atlocated between funds based upon

balances. In accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board No. 31, Accounting -for Financial

Reporting for Certain Investments and for External Investment Pools, the City reports its money market
investments and investments in short term debt securities that have remaining maturities of one year or less at
amortized cost All other investments are stated at fair value based on quoted market prices.

E. Interfund Receivdbles and Payables

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of the
fiscal year as weil as all other outstanding balances between funds are reported as “due to/from other funds.”

F. Management Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United. -

States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets
and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amount of revenues and expenditures/expenses during the perlod Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

G. Inventories

All inventories are valued at cost using the first-in/first-out (FIFO) method. Inventories consist of expendable ..

supplies held for consumption. The cost is recorded as an asset at the time the individual item is purchased.
Inventories reported in the governmental funds are equally offset by a fund balance reserve, which indicates that
they do not constitute “available, spendable resources” even though they are a component of net current assets.

H. Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure.assets, are reported in the government-
wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the City as assets with an initial, individual cost of more
than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of two years. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or
estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market
value at the date of donation. The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or
materially extend asset lives are not capitalized. Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized
as projects are constructed.  Interest incurred during the construction phase of capltal assets of business-type
activities is included as part of the capitalized value of the assets constructed,

Property, plant and equipment of the primary government are depreciated using the straight lme method over the
following useful lives:

Asset Years

. Building and improvements ' 20-40
Improvements other than buildings 25-40
Machinery and equipment - 5-10
Infrastructure 25-75

Infrastructure assets acquired prior to September 30, 1980 are included in the amounts reported.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS _ CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA

'FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contmued)

1.  Deferred Outﬂowsl Inflows of Resources

In addition. to assets, the statement of financial position and/ or balance sheet will sometimes report a separate
section “for deferred -outflows of resources. “This.- .separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of
‘resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as
an outflow of resources (expense/ expenditure) until then. The City has only one item that qualifies for reporting in
this category. It is the deferred charges on refundings reported in the government-wide statement of net position. A
deferred charge on refunded debt results from the d:fference in carrying value of the refunded debt and its
reacquisition price. This amount is deferred and amiortized over the shorter of the life of the refunded or refunding

debt,

In addition to habilmes the statement of financial position and or balance sheet will sometimes report a separate
section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources,
represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an-inflow -
of resources (revenue) until that time. The government has two types of items, program income and other income
earned in future periods.

J. Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as
. liabilities in the applicable governmental activities statement of net assets. Bond premiums and discounts, as well
as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds
payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance-costs are reported as other
assets and amortized over the term of the related debt.

At the governmental fund financial reporting level, bond premiums and discounts are reported as other financing
sources and uses, scparately from the face amount of the bonds issued.  Bond issuance costs are reported as”’

expenditures.
K. Compensated Abscnces

Accumulated sick pay benefits have not been recordcd as a liability because these benefits are paid upon the iliness
of an employee and the amount of such payments cannot be reasonably estimated. Accumulated -unpaid vacation
costs are accrued when incurred in the government-wide financial statements.

Governmental funds report the compensated absence liability at the fund reporting level only “when due.”
L. . Fund Equity

Fund equity at the governmental fund financial reporting level is classified as “fund balance.” Fund equity for all
other reporting is classified as “net position.”

Fund Balance
Generally, fund balance represents the difference between the assets and liabilities under the current. financial

resources measurement focus of accounting. In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report fund
balance classifications that comprise a hierarchy based prrmarlly on the extent to which the City is bound to honor
constraints on the specific purposes for which amounts in those funds can be spent. Fund balances are classified as

follows:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS . CITY OF ANNISTON; ALABAMA

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

NOTE— 1 . SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contmued)
L. - Fund Equlty (continued)

® Nonspendab[e Fund balances are reported as nonspendable when amounts cannot be spent because they
are either (a) not in spendable form (i.e,, items that are not expected to be converted to cash) or (b) legally
or conn actually required to be malntamed mtact

~® Restricted - Fond balances are reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use either
through the enabling legislation adopted by the City or through extema] restrictions 1mposed by creditors,
grantors or laws or regulations of other govemments.

o Committed - Fund balances are reported as committed when they can be used only for specnf‘ C purposes
pursuant to constraints imposed by formal action of the City Council through the adoption of a resolution,
OnEy the _City Council may modify or rescind the commitment. :

o  Assigned - Fund balances are reported-as assigned when amounts are constrained by the City’s intent to be
used for specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed. Through resolution, the City Council
has authorized the City Manager to assign fund balances.

M. Fund Equity

o  Unassigned - Fund balances are reported as unassigned as the residual amount when the balances do not
meet any of the above criterion. The City reports positive unassigned fund balance only in the general
fund. Negative unassigned fund balances may be reported in all funds.

o  Flow Assumptions - When both restricted and unrestricted amounts of fund balance are available for use for
expenditures incurred, it is the City’s policy to use restricted amounts first and then unrestricted amounts as
they are needed. For unrestricted amounts of fund balance, it is the City’s policy to use fund balance in the
following order:

*  Committed
*  Assigned
+ Unassigned

e Nef Position - Net position reptesent the difference between assets & deferred outflows of resources and
liabilities & deferred inflows of resources in reporting which utilizes the economic resources measurement
focus. Net position invested in capital assets, net of related debt, consists of capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of any borrowing used (i.e., the amount that
the City has spent) for the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets. Net position is
reported as restricted using the same definition as used for restricted fund balance as described in the
section above. All other net assets are reported as unrestricted.

The City applies restricted resources first when an expense i$ incurred for purposes for which both restricted and
unrestricted net assets are available. ' ,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA

FOR THE YEAR.ENDED SE'PTEMB-ER 30,2013

 NOTE2 RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT—WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL
.STATEMENTS

_ Explanatwn of certain d;ﬂ"erences between governmental funa‘s balance sheet and the government—wzde statement of
net pos.rtlon : :

' The govemmental funds balance sheet mcludes reconciliation between fund balance ~ total: governmental funds and.
net position — governmental activities as reported in the statement of net position. One element of that reconciliation

explains that long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current ‘year and, therefore, are not reported in the
funds.. The deta:ls of this difference are as follows:

Bonds Payable : - $ (38,125,000)
Deferred charge (t0 be amortized as interest expense) 383,943
Issiance discounts and premiums (to be amortized as interest expense) 316,281
Intergovernmental agreement ' (276,251)
Capital lease - A (563,270}
Accrued interest payable - (322,413)
Compensated absences (2,327,007)
OPEB Obligations ' (4,216,152)
Net adjustment to reduce fund balance - total govemment funds to arrive at net position - '
governmental activities $ (45,129,869)

Explanation of certain differences between governmental funds statement of revenue, expend.rtw es and changes in
Jfund balances and the government -wide statement of activities:

The governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances includes reconciliation
between Net Change in Fund Balances — total governmental funds, and changes in net position of governmental "
activities as reported in the government- -wide statement of activities. One element of that reconciliation explains
that. govemmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of activities, the cost of
those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. The details of this
difference are as follows: : :

Outlays capitalized : : $ 10,148,132
Net value of assets disposed or transferred to propnetary funds (33,626)
Depreciation expense _ {5,262,964)
Net Adjustment to increase net change in fund balances -

total government funds to arrive at changes in net position of governmental activities 3 4,851,542
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CITY OF ANNISTON, A'LABAMA

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

NOTE 2 RECONCILIAT!ON OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL
: STATEMENTS (continued). '

Another element of that reconciliation states that the issuance of Iong-term debt prowdes current f' nancial resources
1o -governmental funds, while' the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial
resources of governmental funds. Neither transactlon howéver, has any effect on net posmon Also, governmental
funds report the effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas
these amounts are deferred and amortized in the statement of activities. The details of this difference are as follows:

Debt issued or incurred

Proceeds from long-term debt issued ' ' $ (21,549)
Amortization of long-term debtrelated, premiums, discounts, etc. (45,017)
' Principal repayments'(includingrefunding proceeds to escrow agent) . 585,070
Net adjustment to increase net change in fund balances - total government funds toarrive at
- changes in net position of govemmental activities - 3 518,504

Another element of that reconciliation states some expenses reported in the statement of activities differ from
amounts reported as expenditures in governmental funds. The details of this difference are as follows:

Compensated absences $ 228,640
OPEB Obligations (778,369)
Accrued interest ‘ 304,809
. Net adjustment to decrease net change in fund balances - total government funds toarrive at
changes in net position of govemmental activities ‘ 5 {244,920)

Explanation of certuin differences between governmental funds balance sheet and the governmem wide statement of
net position:

The governmentat funds balance sheet includes reconciliation between fund balance - total governmental funds and
net position — governmental activities as reported in the statement of net position. One element of that reconciliation .
explains that “capital assets used in governmental activitics are not financial resources and, therefore, are not
reported in the funds,” The details of this difference are as follows: -

Land _ $ 8,925,355
Collection . 8,342,992
Linprovements other than Buildings 3,161,685
Less: Accumulated depreciation-Improvements other than Buildings ' (327,405)
Buildings & Improvements L. 64,639,239
Less: Accumulated depreciation-Buildings & Improvements (19,431,738)
Machinery & Equipment 13,933,702
Less: Accumulated depreciation-Machinery & Equipment (9,538,105)
Infrastructure - . 105,429,666
Less: Accumulated depreciation-Infrastructure (68,616,655)
Net adjustment to increase fund balance - total government funds to arrive at net position -
governmental activities $ 106,518,736"
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS = CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

_ NOTE3 - STEWARDSHIP COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

_,The fol]owmg procedures are used by the City in estab]:shmg the budgetary data reﬂerted in the ﬁnanc:al

' statements:
' Prior to October 1, the City Manager submlts to the Cu:y Council proposed 0peratmg budgets for the fiscal

N year commencing October L.
‘Public hearings are conducted at City Hall to obtain taxpayer comments.
Prior to October I the budget is lega!ly enacted through the passage of a resolution.

The City Manager. is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts within departments of any fund however,
any revisions to the total expenditures of any fund or department must be approved by the City Council.

Formal budgetar)'r' integratio'n is employed as a management control device during the year for all
~ governmental funds.

All unencumbered appropriations lapse automatically on September 30.

State law prohibits any municipality from making expenditures in excess of budgeted amounts unless the
* actual revenue is more than the budgeted amounts.

Budgets for all funds are prepared in accordance with the modlﬁed accrual basis for accounting.

Budgeted amounts are as originally adopted, or as amended by the City Council.

The following funds had excesses of actual expenditures over appropriations in the amount shown for the
fiscal year ended September 30, 2013,

General Government

Finance Division $ 11,773 .
General Division 2,390
City Council - 3,686
Professional Services 109,500
Utilities ‘ 2,975
Workman's Compensation Insurance 36,061
Employer Funded Healthcare 316,410
Other Insurance 28,867
Miscellaneous 284,148
Public Safety : ‘
Police 175,230
Municipal Court 7,113
Detention Facilities 17,946
Fire 119,991
Pubtic Works ’
General : 8,310
Cemetery : _ 3,088
(arage - 19,737
Environmental Services . 44,118
Street Department - 160,654
Planning’ ' 17,202
Culture and Recreations ‘
Administration : 96,968
Parks, facilities and utilities . 57,895
PARD Program _ 40,210 -
Park Maintenance 15,548
Anniston City Board of Education 121.600
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -~ CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 :
' NOTE 4 ~ DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

' Custodlal Credit R:sk

_Custodia] credit risk for deposus is the risk that, in the event of the fallure of a-depository financial institution, a
government will not be able to recover deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in the
possession of an oiitside party.. State statutes require all deposits and investments (other than federal or state
government instruments) to be co]laterallzed by depository insurance, obligations of the U.8. government, or bonds
of public authormes countigs, or mumupahtles

The City is restricted by State statute - to investments in U.S. Government Treasury. and Agency securxnes
certificates of deposit and money market accounts, ‘repurchase agreements and reverses repurchase agreements,
hanker’s acceptances and dommercial paper, Each of the banks holding the City’s deposits, as well as.those of the
component units, is a certified participant in the SAFE program. Through the SAFE program, all public funds are
protected through a collateral pool administered by the Alabama State Treasury. Cash deposits and savings held at
local banks are insured by the FDIC or collateralized by assets administered by the state treasurer’s office in
accordance with the “SAFE” program.

At Septémber 30, 2013, all of the deposits of the City were fully collateralized in accordance with the state statutes.

As of September 30, 2013, the City had the fol]owingrdeposits, classified as investments.

Investment Type Maturities Fair Value
Certificates of deposit 365 days or less 5 3,893,269
Government securities 245 days 501,285
Money market N/A 455,075

$ 4,849,629

Interest Rate Risk:

The City does nét have a formal investment policy that limits investment maturities as a means of managing its
exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates. However, all investments are reviewed on a
monthly basis for interest rate fluctuations and appropriate actions are taken to minimize this risk.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

NOTE 5 -RECEIVABLES

Receivables at September 30, 2013, for the Clty s individual funds, mcludmg the apphcable allowances for
uncol]ectlb!e accounts are as follows

Special ' Speclal :
‘ Revenue ‘Revenue Non-Major
Receivables General CDBG___ HOME Governmental _Total
Taxes $ 2,045,809 § - 3 -~ = § 2,045,809
Accounts. 178,958 - - 3,673 182,631
Notes - - 741,794 1,220,009 - 680,497 _ 2,642,300
Gross Receivable C2,224767 741,794 1,220,009 684,170 4,870,740
Less Allowance for o ' ' ‘ .
Uncollectible - .- _ - (121,600) - (121,600)

Net Total Receivable $ 2,224,767 5 741,794 $ 1,220,009 $ 562,570 § 4,749,140

Property taxes are Jevied as of October 1 of each year.on property assessed the preceding October 1. The taxes are
due on October 1 and become delinquent on the lien date of January 1. Billings are mailed out on October 1 of each
year. Property taxes are received monthly from Calhoun County. Taxes that are not both available and measurable
are not.accrued. These include property taxes, business licenses and franchise taxes.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ' CITY OF ANNISTON; ALABAMA

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013
NOTE6  -CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2013 is as follows:

Goyernmental Activities Balance - ' : Balance
o ) 930712 Additions Deductions Transfers 9/30/13
Non-Depreciable ' ' ‘ : : o
Land : ‘ $ 8,734,825 - § 190,530 - - $ 8,925,355
Collections _ 8,329,797 - 13,195 - - 8342992
Construction in Progress _ 25,316,719 - - (25,316,719) .
42,381,341 - 203,725 - ' - 17,268,347
Depreciable . ] _
Buildings & Improvements 31,270,439 33,740,885 (372,085) - 64,639,239
"Machinery & Equipment 14,147,885 647,323 (891,506) - 13,933,702
Improvements other than 2,318,767 842,918 - B 3,161,685 .
buildings :
Infrastructure - 105,429,666 . - - - 105,429,666
Total other Capital Assets 153,166,757 35,261,126 (1,263,591) - 187,164,292
Total Capital Assets 195,548,098 35,464,851 (I_,263,591) (25,316,719) 204,432,639
Accumulated Depreciation _
Buildings ‘ . 18,152,678 1,624,844 (345,784) - 19,431,738
Muchinery & Equipment 9,552,424 869,862 (884,181) - 9,538,105
Improvements cther than Bldgs 252,727 - 74,678 - - 327,405
Infrastructure 65,923,075 2,693,580 ) - . 68,616,635
Total Accumulated ) L
Depreciation 93,880,904 5,262,964 (1,229,965) - 97,913,903
Governmental Activities
Capital Assets, net $ 101,667,194 § 30,201,887 §  (33,626) . $(25316,719) ¥ 106,518,736,

Depreciation expense was charged to governmental functions as follows:

General Government § 855236
Public Safety 802,433
Public Works 2,919,670
Housing and Development 101,318
Culture and Recreation 584,907

$ 5262964
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ~ CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

NOTEG6 =~ CAPITAL ASSETS (continued)
Business Type Activities Balance ' ' : Balance
. 9/30/12  Additions Deductions _Transfers 9/30/13
Property 30,884 . - .- 30884
Furniture and Fixtures - _ 27,925 - - - 27,925
58,809 - - . ' - 58,809
Accumuiated Depieciation (44,263) a,62m . - . (45,890)
14,546 O (1,627) .- ' - 12,919
Compenent Units; Balance : Balance
' 9/30/12 Additions Deductions - 9/30/13
Non-Depreciabie . a
Land $ 1,404,063 5 - k] - $ 1,404,003
Collections 8,710,356 17,985 - - 8,728,341
' 10,114,419 17,985 - 10,132,404
Depreciated
Collections 831,290 - - 831,290
Buildings 17,048,132 - - 17,048,132
Building improvements 15,709,106 32,829 - 15,741,935
Vehicles 745,710 88,016 - 833,726
Machinery & Equipment 2,003,885 - 38,785 - 2,042,670
Total other Capital Assets 36,338,123 159,630 - 36,497,753
Total Capital Assets 46,452,542 177,615 - 46,630,157
Accumulated Depreciation .
Collections 740,860 45,451 - 786,311
Buildings 11,052,512 325,968 - 11,378,480
Building Improvements 6,151,319 547,776 - 6,699,095
Land Improvements 205,524 - - 205,524
Vehicles ’ 526,434 17,581 - 544,015
Machinery & Equipment 1,451,545 130,313 _- 1,581,858
Total Accumulated Depreciation 20,128,194 1,067,089 - 21,195,283
Governmental Activities Capital .
Assets, net $ 26,324,348 3 {889,474) 3 - $ 25,434,874
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ' CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013
'NOTE7 LONG-TERM DEBT
Primary Government

Long-term liability activity for the year ended September 30, 2013 is as follows:

, Due In More
Balance " Batance Due Within Than One
9/30/12 Additions  Reductions - 9/30/13 OneYear  Year
Governmential activities ’ .
Bonds and warrants $ 38,370,000 § - % 245000 $38,125000 $ 1,070,000 § 37,055,000
Less deferred amounts ,
Unamortized refunding . (3,711 - (206) (3,505) . {3,505)
Unamortized discount (401,061) - {20,623) (380,438) - (386,438)
Total Bonds and Warrants 37,965,228 - 224,171 37,741,057 1,070,000 36,671,057
Intergovernmental
Agrg_efnent 394,990 - 118,739 276,251 131,340 144,911
Capital lease payable 763,053 21,549 221,331 563,271 217,882 345,389
Compensated absences 2,555,647 - 228,640 2,327,007 511,129 1,815.878
Net OPEB Obligations 3,437,783 1,290,700 512,332 4,216,151 388,100 3,828,051
Governmental activities
Long- Term Liabilities $ 45116701 § 1,312,249  $1,305213  $45,123,737 § 2318451 § 42,805,286

t
Governmental activities:

Bonds and Warrants.

During the fiscal year ended September 30, 2011, the City issued the Series 2010 general

obligation bonds for purposes of (a) financing the costs of capital improvemenis for the City, (b} refundmg
of the 1998 issuance, (c) paying the expenses of issuing the bonds. The bonds are direct obligations of the
City, and full faith and credit of the City is pledged against the bonds. The 2010 Series General Obligation
Warrants are due semi-annually at rates ranging frem 4.2% - 5.3% per annum, maturing March 1, 2035.
The balance at September 30, 2011 was $7,440,000. The carrying amount of the old debt exceeded the
reacquisition price by $19,012. This amount is being netted against the new debt and amortized over the
life of the new debt, which is longer than the refunded debt. The transaction also resulted in an economic
gain of $3,917 and a reduction of $19,707 in future debt service payments. '

‘During the year ended September 30, 2011, The City issued bonds through the Public Building Authority
‘of the City of Anniston in the amount of $16,170,000 for the DHR Building Project. The proceeds from
the bonds are to be used for construction of a building and pay certain costs incuired in connection with the
execution and delivery of the bonds. The bonds are limited obligations of the City and are payable solely
from the rent received on the building. The 2011 Series DHR Building Revenue Bonds are due semi-
annually at rates ranging from 2.0% - 5.5% per annum, maturing May 1, 2033,

During the year ended September 30, 2011, the City issued bonds through the Public Buildidg Authority of
the City of Annisten in the amount of $15,000,000 for the Judicial Center Project, The proceeds from the
bonds are to be used for construction of a building and pay certain costs incurred in connection with the

" execution and delivery of the bonds, The bonds are limited obligations of the City and are payable solely
from the rent received on the building. The 2011 Series Judicial Center Building Revenue Bonds are due
semi- annually at rates ranging from 2.25% - 5.00% per annum, maturing March 1, 2043,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - : CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA

" FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013
NOTE7 -  LONG-TERM DEBT (continued)

'onds and Warrants. (co‘nfinued)

Annual debt service’ requlrements to amortlze bonds and wan‘ants outstandmg, as of
September 30, 2013 follow:

Fiscal Year Ended = - ' Governmental Activity

September 30 Prmelpal Interest = - Total
- 2014 1,070,000 - 1,699,784 o 2,769,784
2015 1,095,000 1,674,209 2,769,209
2016 1,i25,000 1,646,784 2,771,784
20172021 6,140,000 7,703,250 _ 13,843,250
2022-2026 7,290,000 6,395,912 13,685,912
2027-2031 9,020,000 4,507,406 13,527,406
2032-2036 ' 6,880,000 2,139,895 9,019,895
- 2037-2041 3,730,000 - 92,897 3,822,897
2042-2043 1,775,000 89,875 1,864,875
Total $ 38,125,000 $25,950,012 $ 64,075,012

Tntergovernmental Agreement,

On July 1, 2000, the City Council approved participation with the East Central Alabama Industrial
Development Authority along with nine other cities and four counties. The Authority issued $15,475,000
of Spectal Obligation Bonds to provide infrastructure for the Honda plant located at Lincoln, Alabaima.

First Commercial Bank administers the bond agreement (Honda Funding Agreement). The City agreed to~
make annual payments of principal and interest on February 1 of each year beginning 2001 and ending
2015 with principal and interest payments ranging from $145,852 to $152, 397 The balance at September

30, 2013 was $276,251,

Annual debt service requirements to amomze the intergovernmental agreement outstandmg, as of
Septernber 30, 2013 follow: :

Fiscal Year Ended Governmental Activity )
September 30 Principal Interest Total
. 2014 ‘ 131,340 14,512 145,852
2015 144,911 7,486 152,397
Total $ 276,251 $21,998 $ 298,249
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 20]3'-

CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA

' NOTE7 'LONG-TERM DEBT (continued)

Cﬁpital Leases. -

The City has entered into lease agreements as lessee for financing the acquisition of various equipment.
The lease agreements qualify as capital leases for accounting purposes (titles transfer at the end of the Jease
terms) and, therefore, have been recorded at the present value of the future minimum lease payments as of
the date of their inceptions.: The following is an analysxs of leased assets under capltal leases as -of

' September 30, 2013:

* Equipment
Less: Accumulated Depreciation
Net After Accumulated Depreciation
Non Capitalized Equipment
Total

Governmental

Activities
$793,510
(313,806)

479,704
179,611

$ 659,315

The following is a schedule of future minimum lease payments together with the present value of net

minimum lease payments as of September 30, 2013:

Fiscal Year End September 30,
2014

2015

2016

2017

2018

Total Minimum Lease Payment
Less amount representing interest

Present value of future minimum lease payments

Component Unit: Anniston City Board of Education

Governmental
Activities

237,591
213,963

131,043

11,787 .

3,413
597,211
(33,940}

$563,271

Long-term liability activity for the year ended Septernber 30, 2013 is as follows:

Due
Within "Dueln
Beginning Ending One More Than
Balance Additions Reductions Balance Year Oneé Year
Governmental activities ' . ' ]
2003 Pool Bond $ 701,295 - $ 46,502 $ 654,393 % 48,571 % 605822
QZAB ' 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000 - 2,000,000
Governmental activities 7 ' : ,
Long- Term Liabilities  $ 2,701,295 - 3 46,902 $ 2,654,393 $ 48,571 $ 2,605,822
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS . ' CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SE-PTEMBER 30,2013
NOTE 7 LONG-TERM DEBT (contlnued)

Component Umt' Annlston City Board of Edueation (continued)

2003 Pool Bonds. Durmg the year ended September 30, 2004, the Board borrowed $1 02] 738 to finance

' the acquisition and construction of certain-capital improvements to the public schools under the juvisdiction
and control of the Board. The Capital Improvement Pool Bonds Series 2003 are payable, as both prmmpa]
and interest, solely ‘out of and 'secured by a fifst priority pledge and assignment of pledged capital outlay
funds. The principal is payable on December 1 of each year. - Interest computed at 4.13% is payable on
-June 1 and December 1 of each year begmnmg June 1, 2004, The maturity date of the Pool Bonds is
December ], 2023.

Annual debt service requiréments to amortize bonds and warrants September 30, 2013 follow:

Fiscal Year Ended Governmental Activity
September 30 Principal Interest _Total
2014 $ 48,571 $ 26,224 5 74,795
2015 ) 50,577 24,177 74,754
2016 : 52,665 22,046 74,711
2017 54,839 19,827 74,666
2018 57,104 17,516 74,620
2019 -2023 322,892 49,436 372,328
2024 67,745 1,399 69,144
Total $ 654,393 $ 160,625 . $ 815,018
NOTE 8 INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS

The composition of interfund balances as of September 30, 2013, is as follows:

Receivable Fund ' Payable Fund Amount
General Fund Fire Tax Fund 3 19,235
General Fund Public Building 129,382
General Fund Non Major 2,279,749
CDBG HOME : 63,353
Drug Task Fund Non Major 240,333
Non Major Non Major 70,373

These balances resulted from the time lag between the dates that (1} interfund goods and services are provided ov
reimbursable expenditures occur, and (2) payments between funds are made.
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NOTE 8 INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS (conﬁn’uéd)
Irite:"f'uﬁdrtransfers for the year ended September 30, 2013 were:

Drug © Nonmajor -

' : - General Task Governmental
) Transfers In .~ Fund Fund Funds Total
General Fund $ - % 124,000 $ . 410,568 $ 534,568
"Public Building Authority : 822,412 - : . 822,412
Drug Task Force o 124,000 245,620 - 369,620
Nonmajor Governmental Fund 1,393,332 . - 760,905 2,154,237
Nonmajor Governmental Fund - - ' - , .

- $2,339,744 $ 369,620 $  1,171473 $ 3,880,837

These transfers were used to assist other funds in meeting operating requirements for the year ended
September 30, 2013,

NOTE 9 RETIREMENT PLANS

The City participates in two pension plans which cover substantialty all employees. Both of these plans are
established by state law and are administered by outside trustees. The Retirement Systems of Alabama’s accounts
-are not included in the accompanying financial statemenis, however, the accounts from the Policemen’s and
Firemen’s Retirement Fund for the City of Anniston are included as a fiduciary fund.

Retirement Systems of Alabama

City employees, who elect to be included, are covered by the Retirement Systems of Alabama. This new plan is
fuhded by contributions from employees and the City. Two recent legislations will impact the City's pension plan.
The first legislation is Act 2012-377, which created a new benefit plan for employees with no previous creditable
retirement service hired on or after January 1, 2013, referred as “Tier 2 employees.” Employees hired on or before
January 1, 2013, are considered “Tier 1 Employees.” The second legislation is Act 2011-676, which allows an
agency the option to adopt the higher employee contribution rates. As of the report date, the City has not elected to
increase the employee contribution rate.

“Tier 1” Employees

“Tier 1” employees are eligible and must participate in the State PERS. The pension plan provides pension

benefits, deferred aliowances, and death and disability benefits. A member may retire after accumulating
- 25 years of service with the District or another entny covered by the state PERS. Benefits vest afier 10

years of service,

Employees who retire at or after the age of 60, with ten or more years of service are entitled to pension
payments for the remainder of their lives equal annually to 2.0125% of the member’s average final service.
The final average compensation is the average salary. during the three years in his last ten years of
creditable service for which such average is higher.

Pension provisions include deferred allowances whereby an employee may terminate his or her
employment with the City after accumulating 10 years of service but before reaching the age of 60. If the
employee does not withdraw his or her accumulated contnbunons the employee is entltled to the
applicable benefits upon reaching the age of 60.

45



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CiITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

NOTE9 . RETIREMENT PLANS (continued)
Retirement Systems of Alabalﬁa (continued)

Pension beneﬁts include death benefits and disability benefits, whereby the disabled employee or surviving
spouse is entitled to receive annually an amount equal to 2.0125% of the member’s average final
compensation multiplied by the number of years of his creditable service, reduced by V4 of 1% for each
month by which his age at retirement or death is less than age 60 or his years of service are less than 30, if
less, to a maximum reduction of 25%. State statutes determine benefits, Employees of the City are
'requu‘ed to pay 5% of their gross earnings to the pension plan, The City makes annual contributions to the
pension plan equal to the amount required by state statutes.

“Tier 2” Employees

“Tier 2" Employees are eligible and must participate in the state PERS. The pension plan provides pension
benefits, deferred allowances, and death and disability benefits. A member may retire after accumulating
10 vears of service with the City or another entity covered by the state PERS and attained the age of 62.

Benefits vest after 10 years of service.

Employees who retire at or after the age of 62, with ten or more years of service are entitled to penaion
payment for the remainder of their lives equal annually to 1.65% of the member’s average final service.
The final average compensation is the average salary during the five years in his last ten years of creditable
service for which such average is higher, The renrement benefit cannot exceed 80% of the Average l"mal

Salary.

Pension provisions include deferred allowances whereby an employee may termirate his or her
employment with the City after accumulating 10 years of service but before reaching the age of 62. If the
employee does not withdraw his or her accumulated contributions, the employee is entitled to the
applicable benefits upon reaching the age of 62.

Pension benefits provide disability benefits and death benefits. A disabled employee is entitled to reccive
monthly benefils which are calculated identically to those for service retirement. Death benefits prior to
retirement are calculated and paid to beneficiary(ies) based on the member’s age, service credit,
employment status and eligibility for retirement. State statutes determine benefits. Employees of the City
are required to pay 6% of their gross earnings to the pension plan. The City makes annual contributions 10
the pension plan equal to the amount required by state statutes.

The Employees’ Retirement Systems was established as of October 1, 1945 under the provisions of Act 5135, Acts
of Alabama 1945, for the purpose of providing retirement allowances and other specified benefits for state
employees, state police and on an elective basis to all cities, counties, towns and quasi-public orgamzations The
responsibility for general administration and operation of the Employees’ Retirement Systems is vested in the City
of Anniston, Alabama. Benefit provisions are established by the Code of Alabama 1975, Sections 36-27-1 through
36-27-103, as amended, Sections 36-27-120 through 36-27-139, as amended, and Sections 3627B-1 through 36~
27B-6. Authority to amend the plan rests with the Legislature of Alabama. However, the Legxslature has granted the
Employees’ Retirement System Board authority to aceept or reject various Cost-Of-lemg Ad_mslments (COLAS)

granted to retirees.

The Retirement Systems of Alabama issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements
and required supplementary information for the Employees’ Retirement Systems of Alabama.
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NOTE9. . RETIREMENT PLANS (continued)
Retirement Systems.of Alabalﬁa (continued)

Below is a chart summarizing the payroll, employer’s contributions and employees’ contributions for the year
- ended September 30, 2013, All contributions have been made. ,

Fiseal Year Ended " contributions :
-September 30 Employer ' Employee __Total
2013 $ 606,636 $ 429,521 $ 1,036,157

“The following schedule is;.based on the actuariél valuation as of. September 30;-2013 {most-recent-information: -
available) as provided by the Employees’ Retirement System of Alabama:

Summary of Employee Census Data
Effective For Period Beginning October 1, 2012

Number of active members 220
Annual compensation $ 7,367,995
Number of Retired members and beneficiaries 95
"Annual Retirement allowance $ 1,305,797

Requlred Employer Contributlons
Effective For Period Beginning October 1, 2012

Normal cost 4.12%
Accrued Liability ' 4.56%
Pre-retirement death benefit 0.15%
Administrative Expense 0.18%
Total 9.01% .
5% Employer contribution factor (9.01% / 5%) 1.802000
6% Employer confribution factor (9.01% / 6%) 1.501667

Required Employer Contributions
Effective For Period Beginning July 1,2013

Normal cost _ : 1.90%
" Accrued Liability 4.61%
Pre-retirement death benefit : 0.15%
Administrative Expense 0.18%
Total 6.84%
7.5% Employer contribution factor (6.84% / 7.5%) 912000
8.5% Employer contribution factor (6.84% / 8.5%) 804706
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NOTE 9 RE_'I.‘IREME‘NT PLANS (continued)

Retirement Systems of Alabama (continued)

The chart below shows the annual pension cost which equaled the annual required contribution for the
current year angd prior two years along with the percentage actually contributed by the City.

Percentage of

Annual Annual Pension Net Pension
Fiscal Year Ending - Pension Cost Cost Contributed Obligation
September 30, 2011 $ 521,091 100% -
September 30, 2012 526,195 100% -
September 30, 2013 606,636 100% -

As of the most recent valuation date, September 30, 2012, the funded status of the Plan was as follows:

Actuarial
Actuarial - Actuarial Accrued Anmnal Percentage
Valuation Value of Liabilities Funded Unfunded Covered of Covered
Date Assets (AAL) Ratio (1)/(2) {1)-(2) Payroll Payrol}
9/30/2012 $17,995,708 §$25,265,943 71,2% ($7,270,235)  §7,265,216 100%

. The valuation was prepared using the entry age normal actuarial cost method. An interest rate and projected sdlary
increases of 3.75%:-7.25% were used for all purposes, together with other actuarial assumptions based on the
experience of the system, Since the previous valuation, there have been no amendments to the system affecting the

valoation,

Actuarial gains and losses are reflected in the unfunded actuarial accrued liability, which is being amortized over a_
twenty-year period. The amortization period is closed. The retirement plan is included in the financial report of the”
Retirement Systems of Alabama. Copies of this report may be obtained from the Retirement Systems of Alabama,
P.0). Box 302150, Montgomery, Alabama 36130-2150.

The required schedule of funding progress immediately following the notes to the financial statements presents
muitiyear lrend information about whether the actuarial value of plan net assets is increasing or decreasing over time
relative to the actuarial accrued Hability.

Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of
events far into the future, and actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual revision as resulis are
compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about the future.  Actuarial calculations reflect a long-
terin perspective. '

Policemen’s and Firemen’s Retirement Fund for the City of Anniston

The Pohcemen s and Firemen’s Retirement Fund is funded by contributions-from employees ot the City. The plan
covers all sworn members of the Police and Fire Departments of the City. The Fund was substantially amended by
the State of Alabama with Act No. 2012-484, effective October 1, 2012. Retirement benefits are paid to those
members with 25 or more years (20 years if hired before May 29, 1979) equal to three percent of their final three- -
year average salary times their years of service up to a maximum of thlrty years of service. Effective Qctobier, 1,

"012, employees with the earlier of attaining age 65 or 25 years of service are entitled to pension benefits equal of

2.5% of compensation years of service on and after October 1, 2012, plus 3% of compensation of years of services,

but not greater than 30, less years of service on and after October 1, 2012, For additional information on pension
benefits, please, refer to the Policemen’s and Firemen’s Retirement Fund's audited financial statements, An
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NOTES . RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued)
_Policemeh’s and Firemen’s,Retiremeﬁt Fund for the City of Anniston (Continued)

actuarlal valuation of the plan is made blannually, however contribution amounts are prescribed by state law and do
not vary with the actuarial va]uatton These contrlbutlon rates.are as follows: .

_The most recont actuanal valuation was performed as o_f October 1, 2012, and contains the following information:

Valuation date i © . Qctober 1, 2012
Actuarial cost method Entry age '
Amortization method - Level percent closed
Remaining amortization period 26 years
Asset valuation method Market value/
Actuarial Assumptions:

Investment rate of return*. 8.0%

Projected salary increases* 3.5%

*Includes inflation at 3.0%

Below is a chart summarizing the payroll, employer’s contributions and employees’ contributions for the year
ended September 30, 2013. All contributions have been made.

Fiscal Period Ending Employer Employee Total
September 30, 2013 $ 2,738,006 $ 1,082,078 $ 3,820,084

The following schedule is based on the actuarla] valuation as of October 1, 2012 (most recent information
available);

Summary of Employee Census Data

Number of active members 170
Annual compensation $ 7,687,605
Number of Retired members and beneficiaries o 168
Annual Retirement allowance _ $ 3,688,668

Required Employer Contributions

Normal ¢cost 14;7%
Accrued Liability 26.2%
Total 40.9%

~ The chart below shows thc annual pension cost which equaled the annual required contribution for the
current year and prior two years along with the percentage actually contributed by the City.

Percentage of i
Annual Annual Pension Net Pension

Fiscal Year Ending Pension Cost Cost Contributed Obligation
September 30, 2013 $ 3,820,084 -90.4% 401,546
September 30, 2012 1,949,960 ' 100% ) - '
September 30, 2011 1,979,022 100% -
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NOTE 9 RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued)
Poliéem_en’s_ and Firemen’s Retirement Fund for the City of Anniston (Continﬁéd}

As of the most recent valuation date, October 1, 2012, the funded status of the Plan was as follows:

o : Actuarial :
‘Actuarial Actuarial Accrued ' ' : Annual. Percentage
‘Valuation Value of Liabilities Funded Unfunded Covered of Covered
Date ] Assets ~ (AAL) Ratio (1)/(2) . (1-(2) Payroll Payroll

10/1/2012 $21,101,844 $61,571,576 34.3% ($40,469,732) $7,687,605  526.40%

The required schedule of ‘funding progress immediately following the notes to the financial statemens presents
multiyear trend.information about whether the actuarla] value of plan net assets is increasing or decreasing over time
relative to the actuarial accrued ]Iablll‘ty

Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of
events far into the future, and actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual revision as resulis are
compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. Actuarial calculations reflect a long-
term perspective. Calculations are based on the substantive plan in effect as of October 1, 2012.

NOTE 10 OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS
Description

Effective October 1, 2007, the City adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 45, “Accounting and Financial
Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. The City, through its substantive
commitment to provide other post-employment benefits (OPEB), maintains a single-employer defined benefit plan
to provide certain postretirement healthcare benefits to all former employees who have 25 years of continuous’
service, regardless of age, or who have 10 years of continuous service and are age 60. Such benefits are available to
spouses or dependents of retiree until the spouse and / or other dependent attains Medicare eligibility.

Funding Policy

The City pays for postemployment heaithcare benefits on a pay-as-you-go basis.  The City is studying the
establishment of trusts that would be used to accumulate and invest assets necessary to pay for the accumulated
liability. These financial statements assume that pay-as-you-go funding will continue.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation

The Clty s annual OPEB cost is calculated based on the annual required contribution (ARC) of the Cify, an amount
actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement 45. The ARC represents a level of
funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded
actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a petiod of 30 years. The following table iliustrates the components of
the City’s annual OPEB cost for the year, the amount actually contributed to the Plan, and changes in the City’s net
OPEB obligation: '
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NOTE i0 OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (contmued)
Mem‘bersth

The followmg schedule (derlved from the most recent actuarlal va]uanon report) reﬂects membershlp for the OPEB
Hea]th Care Plan as of October 1, 2012

Active ‘members - 377
Retired members 66
Total © 443

Contributions

The City contributed $512,332 to the OPEB Health Care Plan in fiscal year 2013, The annual required contribution
amount is determined .using actuarial methods and assumptions approved by the Commission. The Council
establishes and may amend the funding policy for th¢ OPEB Hgalth Care Plan.

Annual Required Contribution . $ 1,296,400
Annual OPEB Cost 1,296,400
Interest on net OPEB obligation 141,000
Adjustment on net OPEB obligation {146,700)
Actual Contribution (512,332)
Increase in net OPEB obligation. 778,368
- Net OPEB obligation, September 30, 2012 3,437,783
Net OPEB obligation, September 30, 2013 $ 4,216,151
Percentage
Fiscal Year of OPEB
Ended Annual Actual OPEB Cost Net OPEB
September 30, OPEB Cost Contribution Contributed Obligation
2008 $ 1,128,600 $ 475,500 - 42.13% $ 653,100
2009 1,129,000 468,800 41.52% 1,313,300
2010 922,200 281,200 30.49% 1,954,300
2011 967,400 313,900 32.45% 2,607,800
2012 1,232,200 397,917 32.29% 3,437,783
2013 1,296,400 : 512,332 39.50% 4,216,151

F un;ding Status and Funding Progress

As of October 1, 2011, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the funded status of the Plan was as follows:

Actuarial
Actuarial Actuarial Accrued - Annual Percentage
Valuation Value of Liabilities Funded Unfunded . Covered of Covered
Date Assets (AAL) Ratio (1)/(2) (1)-(2) Payroll Payroll

10/1/2011 - $ 13,679,400 0.0% ($ 13,679,400) - - 0.0%
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NOTE 10 OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (contmued)

Funding Status and Funding Progress ( commued)

Actuarial valuations of an ongomg plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptlons about’
the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future employment,
mortality, and the healithcare cost trend.” Amounts determined regardmg the funded status of the Plan and the annual
required contributions of the employer are subject to- continual revision as actual results are compared- with past -
expectations and new estimates are made about the future. Actuarial .calculations reflect a long-term perspective.
Calculations are based on the plan in effect at October 1, 20]1 The assumptions used in the October 1, 2011
actuarial valuation are as follows: :

Coat Method = - Projected Unit Credit
Actuartal Asset Valuation Method " Market Value of Assets
Assumed Rate of Return on Investments . 4.50%

Medical Cost Trend Rate 10.00%

Ultimate Medical Cost Trend Rate 5.00%

Year of Ultimate Trend Rate 2017

Amortization Method Level dollar, closed
Remaining Amortization Period 30 years

Payroil Inflation Rate 2.50%

The schedule of funding progress, presented as RS! following the notes to the financial statements, is to present
multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of Plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time
relative to the actuarial accrued Hability for benefits,

NOTE 11 DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN

Employees are also eligible to participate in the PEIRAF Deferred Compensation Plan of the Retirement ﬁystems of '
Alabama. Employees may defer a portion of their pre-tax compensation into this plan and are eligible to remove the
proceeds at retirement. The City does not contribute to this plan.

NOTE 12 . RISK MANAGEMENT

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft, errors and omissions, job-refated illnesses and
injuries, and natural disasters, Risk management is the process of managing the City’s activities to minimize the
adverse effects of certain types of losses and to obtain finances to provide for or restore the economic damages of
those losses. The City maintains insurance coverage with the Alabama Municipal Insurance Corporation, The City
believes the’ coverage is adequate to-preciude any significant risk exposure. The City is self-insured for employee’s
medical coverage for claims up to an expected level. A specific stop loss agreement is in effect with an outside
insurance company. This will cover claims exceeding $125,000 per eligible employee per year with an outside
company. As of September 30, 2013, a liability for future claims is not recorded. The liability, if any, for this
contingency is measured in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Boards (FASB) Statement No. 5.
Expenses are recognized when incurred and offsetting revenues ar¢ recorded as a reduction against the applicable
expenditure. For insured programs, there have been no significant reductions in insurance coverage. Settlement
amounts have not exceeded insurance coverage for the current year or the three prior years.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

‘NOTE13 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

" Grant Contingencies:

Amounts received or receivable from grantof agencies are subject to aﬁ_dit and adjustment By grantor age_ncies. Any
disallowed claims, 'including amounts already collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable-ﬁmds.

- The City is a defendant in various litigations of which legal counsel and City management are of the opinion that

none will have a material adverse effect on the financial statements of the City. These-actions include both asserted
and unassertéd claims. The City’s legal counsel has advised thai damages on any asserted. claims, should an
unfavorable judgment be reached, will-be within the limits of the City’s insurance coverage and therefore should not
impact upon municipal assets. The City’s maximum liability is estimated to be the $5,000 insurance deductible for
claims. No accrual has been included in these financial statements for this mater.

NOTE 14 ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

In June 2011, GASB issued Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred
Inflows of Resources, and Net Posifion. Statement No, 63 provides guidance for deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources. The requirements of this Statement will improve financial repofting by standardizing
the presentation of deferred outflows of resources and their effects on a government’s net position. It alleviates
uncertainty about reporting those financial statement elements by providing guidance where none previously
existed.

Statement No. 65 “Items Previously Repoiied as Assels and Liabilities”- the objective of Statement No. 65 is to
either properly classify certain items that were previously reported as assets and liabilities as deferred outflows of
resources or deferred inflows of resources or to recognize certain items that were previously reported as assets and
liabilities as outflows of resources (expenses or expenditures) or inflows of resources (revenues). This statement
will become effective for the City in fiscal year 2014. .

Statement No. 68, “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions- an amendment of GASB Statement No. 27."
The primary objective of this Statement is to improve accounting and financial reporting by state and local
governments for pensions. This Statement will become effective for the City in fiscal year 2015. Management has
not yet determined the impact of this Statement on the financial statements.

NOTE 15 PRIOR PERIOD CORRECTION OF ERROR

In a test of amounts Due from Other Governmental Entities, we discovered that the beginning balance of the amount
due from HUD in the CDBG Special Revenue Fund was overstated by $209,561. It was determined at September
30, 2013, the amount due from HUD was $13,043; however the general ledger indicated amount due was $222,604.
Accordingly, the beginning balance was overstated by $209,561.

CDBG Special Revenue Fund

Fund Balance- October 1, 2012 $231,318 .
Correction of error ( 209,561)
Fund Balance-October 1, 2012-Restated $ 21,757

53



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS * CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

NOTE I6 - EARLY RETIREMENT INCENTIVE PROGRAM

On August 13, 2013, the City passed Resolutlon 13- R~192 Wl’llCl’l author:zed an Early Ret1rement Incentwe Program
offered o all “Eligible Employees” To be considered an “Eligible Employee”, a person must (a) be a full-tlme
employee of the City of Anniston, in good standing, as of date of the Resolution; (b) be at least age 54 or attain the

~ age 54 no later than November 21, 2013; and (c) be e]1glble for retirement benefits through his or her respectlve
retirement system as of November 21, 2013. The program ‘was not retroactive. Eligible employees who agreed to
the written Retirement Incentive Agreement and Release received contmued participation in the City’s Health
Insurance Plan for five years or until the employee is no longer eligible to participate in the plan. '

The City had 16 of the 64 ellglble employees who took advamage of the one-time early retiroment incentive. Asa
result of the incentive, the City was able to reduce budgeted salaries and benefits expenditures approxlmately
$ 638,000, less any new hires. The Clty prOJects these savings to carry forward into future years.

NOTE 17 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In preparing the financial statements, management evaluated subsequent events through June 16, 2014, the date the
financial statements were available to be issued, and have determined that no subsequent event, except as discussed
below, has occurred that requires additional disclosures in the Notes to the Financial Statements,

The Policemen’s and Firemen’s Retirement Fund is funded by contributions from employees and the City. The plan
covers all sworn members of the Police and Fire Departments of the City. The Fund was substantially amended by
the State of Alabama with Act No. 2012-484, effective October 1, 2012,

According to the Act, effective on and after October 1, 2012, subject to subsection (b) of the Act, the City of
Anniston shall contribute to the trust out of the City of Anniston treasury, such amounts that are sufficient to meet -
the normal cost of the plan and to amortize the plan’s unfunded liability, if any, within 30 years. Furthermore, the

net increase, if any, in the plan’s unfunded liability arising from significant amendments to the plan, changes in

actual assumptions, changes in funding methods, or actuarial gains or losses shall be amortized within 30 years.

For the year ended September 30, 2013 and 2014, the amount due to the Policemen’s and Firemen’s Retirement

Fund for the minimum funding requirement is § 696,000 for fiscal year 2013 and 2014. The City of Anniston

intends to pay the amount due by September 30, 2014,
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION CITY OF AN NISTON, ALABAMA

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS

Retirement Systems of Alébar_na

: : : : UAALasa
Actuarial 4 ' Actuarial Accrued - Unfunded Percentage
Valuation  Actuarial Value  Liabilities (AAL) AAL Funded Covered = of Covered
Date . of Assets* Entry Age . (UAAL) " Ratio Payroll Payroll of
(a) (b ~ (b-a) (a/b) © ((b-a)/c)
9/30/2007 $ 19,804,701 $ 21,957,493 $ 2,152,792 902%  § 6,870,025 31.3%
9/30/2008 - 19,966,441 23,330,034 3,363,593  85.6% 7,696,743 43.7%
9/30/2009 19,744,665 24,077,674 4,333,009  82.0% 7,466,202 58.0%
9/30/2010* 19,237,752 25,741,050 6,503,298  74.7% 7,367,995 88.3%
9/30/2011* 18,586,518 26,010,836 7,424,318 71.5% 7,417,861 100.1%
9/30/2012° 17,995,708 - 25,210,299 7.214,591  71.4% 7,265,216 99.3%
9/30/2012%° 17,995,708 25,265,943 7,270,235  71.2% 7,265,216 100.1%

! Reflects liability for cost of living benefit increases granted on or after October 1, 1978.

2 Reflects the impact of Act 2011-27, which closes the DROP program to new applicants after March 24, 2011.

3 Reflects the impact of Act 2011-676, which increases the member contribution rates by 2.25% beginning
October 1, 2011, and by an additional 0.25% beginning October 1, 2012, .

" Reflects changes in actuarial assumptions.

5 Reflects changes to interest smoothing methodology.

X%

* The actuarial value of assets was set equal to the market value of assets as of September 30, 2012.

SCHEDULES OF FUNDING PROGRESS

Policemen’s and Firemen’s Fund

Actuarial Actuarial Value Actuarial Unfunded  Funded Ratio  Covered UAALasa

Valuation of Assets Accrued AAL (1)/(2) Payroll Percentage of

Date 10/1 . Liability (UAAL) : Covered Payroll

(AAL)
(a) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (c) {(b-a) / (c))

2012 $21,101,844  $ 61,571,576  § 40,469,732 34.3% $ 7,687,605 526.4%
2011 19,628,595 -59,008,960 39,380,365 33.3% 7,635,932  515.7%
2010 21,152,894 57,954,447 36,801,553 36.5% 8,010,438 459.4%
2009 20,471,581 55,360,777 34,889,196 37.0% 7,854,449 444.2%
2007 27,089,478 49,792,153 22,702,675 54.4% 6,665,540 . 340.6%
2005 - 24,632,743 42,810,623 . 18,177,880 57.5% 16,249,403 290.9%
2003 25,704,942 39,873,805 14,168,863 64.5% 5,565,899  254.6%
2001 23,846,591 3‘_8,531,561 14,684,970  61.9% - = 5,647,923 260.0%

Note: See assumptions used for these schedules disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION " CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA

" FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30; 2013

OPEB Heath Care Plan _
" Actuarial 'Actuarial Va!ue‘ . Actuarial Funded Over '(Unde,r') - ~A.nnual -UAALasa
Valuation of Assets . Acerued Ratio  Funded (UAAL) Covered Percentage of
. Date . Liability (AAL) (1)/(2) (2)-(1) Payroll  Covered Payroll
. W e e ® (6
107172007%* - $ 12,216,500  0.00% §$(12,216,500) $ 13,085,683 -93.36%
10/1/2009 - - 10,135,000 -.00% (10,135,000) 13,342,472 =75.96%

10/1/2011 - 13,679,400 0.00%. - (13,679,400) N/A 0.00%

Note: See assumptions used for these schedules disclosed in the notes to the financial statements,

. **First year of implemenitation
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COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Total
Nonmajor Noamajor Nonmajor Nonmajor
Debi Service Special Revenue Capital Improvement Governmental
Fund Funds Fund Funds
ASSETS
Crsh - 4,143,043 - 4,143,043
Investments - 140,723 - 340,723
- Cash bend on hand - 13,160 - 18,160
Taxes reccivable - - - -
Accounts reecivable - 3,673 - 3,673
Notes receivable - 558,897 - 558,897
Interest reecivable - B . .
Prepaid items . 12,571 - 12,571
Due from other funds - 67,991 2382 76,373
Due from agency funds - - - -
Dugc from other governments - 10,894 938 102,332
Restricied cash - . 153,893 153,508
TOTAL ASSETS - 5,246,932 157,218 5,404,170
LIADILITIES
Acconnss payable . 3k 6,890 6,928
Acerued liabilitics - 20,820 - 21,820
Cash bond liabilities - 123,785 - 123,785
Duc to other funds - 1,035,012 345,148 1,380,180
Due to ageney funds - 48,132 - 48,132
Dute 1o orher govemnignts . - . ;
TGTAL LIABILITIES - 1,228,807 352,038 1,580,345
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Income camed in future periods . 168,207 - 168,202
Fees collected in advance - - - -
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES - 168,207 - 168,207
Nonspendable

Prepaid items - - -
Restricted for:

Judicial - 67,637 . 67,637

Public safety 1,832,944 - 1,832,544

Road improvements - 871,356 2,382 875,738

Court aclivities - - - LR

Culture and ricreation - 27,307 - 27,307

Housing and development N . . B N

Capital Outlay - - - -
Commisied for: - - -

Culture and recreation - 960,358 - 960,358

Capilal Projects - - 153,598 153,898
Assigngd for:

Housing and development - 561,420 - Sh1420
Unassigned - (473,034) (351,100) {824,184}
TOTAL FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT) - 3,849,938 (194,820) 3,655,118
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND

BALANCES - 5,246,952 157,218 5,404,170

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Total
Normajor Nonmajor Nonmajor Nonmajor
Debi Servite Special Revenue Crpital Improvenent Governmental
- Fund Funds X Fund X Funds
REVENUES ]
Intergovemmental - 425,075 : 108,490 533,565
Fines and forfeitumns - 745,135 - 745,135
Charges for seiviees - 232,008 - 232,008
Taxes - 751,476 - 751,476
Interest camed - . 5,190 165,231 111,021
Miscellancons - 175,006 - 175,106
TOTAL REVENUES . . 2,334,590 213,721 2,548,301
EXFENDITURES
General govemment . 350 - 450
Judicial - - - .
Public safety . 442,505 . 442 505
Public works - - 187,312 187,312
Colture and recrcation . - 934,993 - 954,998
Public facilitics " - - - .
Housing and development - 59016 . 59,016
Capital outlay - k391,300 285,363 1,676,663
Debi Service
Principal 340,070 - 245,000 585,070
interest 48,933 . 307,790 356,729
Hond Exchange Cost _ 1253 _ - 4,580 7,833
TOTAL EXPENDITURES - 392,262 2,848,269 1,030,045 4,270,576
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVYER EXPENDITURES {392.262) (513,679 {816,324) (1,722,265}
QTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES}
Procceds from sale of asseis - - - -
Transfers in 392,262 971,264 790,711 2,154,237
Transfers oul . . - {1, 188,536) {352,557) (1,541,093}
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES) 392,262 (212,272) 438,154 613,144
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES - (730,951) {378,170} oo Lz
FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), BEGINNING - 4,580,889 183,350 4,764,239
FUND BALANGES (DEFICIT), END - 3,845,938 (194.@ 3,655,118
41

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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COMBINING BALANCE SHEET -
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA

Museum of Seven
Natural History Gnsoline Cent Gas
Fund Fund Fund

Alabamn
Trust
Fund

Corrections
Fund

Emergency
Shelter Grant

Fund

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents X 896,958 139,607 301,850

Tnvestments 75,000 -
Cash bonds on hand - -
Taxes reecivable -
Aceounis receivable 3,673 -
Notes reecivable - -
Interest receivable -
Prepaid itemis 12,371 -
Duge from other funds - -
Due Trom agency funds - -

556056

1,276,415
265,723

Duc from other governments - 5,730 729

TOTAL ASSETS 938,212 195,337 309,143

556,156

1,544,138

LIABILITIES M

Accounts payable 5,034 .

. Accrued liabilities 21,820 -

Cash Bonds lfabilities - -
Dug 1o other funds - 121,394
Dug 1o agency funds - -
Pue 10 other govemments - -

5,264

TOTAL LIABILITIES . 27,854 131,394

DEFEERED INFLOVYS OF RESOURCES
Incomo eamed in future periods - -
Fees collecled in advance - -

5,886

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES . -
FUND BALANCES

Nonspendable
Prepaid items - -
Restricted for:
Iudicial - -
Public safety - .

Road improvenients - 3,943 309,143

Coun activities - -

Cultyre and meneation -

Housing and devalopment - -
Committed for: -

Culture and recreation 960,358 -
Assigned for

Housing and development - -
Unassigied : - -

550,270

1,544,138

(42)

TOTAL FUND BALANCES (PEFICIT) 960,358 13,943 309,143

550,270

1,544,138

{142

356,156

1,344,138

TOTAL 988,212 145,337 309,143

Sce accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (CONTINUED)

SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Federal State Public Bulletproof Airporl Airport
Seized Assels Scized Assets Safety Grant Vest Grant Wildlife Grant 0%
Fund Fund Fund Fond Fuud Fund

ASSETS

Cash and ¢ash equivalenls 195,615 13,870 - - - -
[avestments - - . - . .
Cash bonds on hand - - - - -

Taxes reccivable - . - . . .
Accounts receivable - - - - - .
Noies eecivable - R R . . .
Interest receivable . - . - - .
Propaid items - - - - - .
Due from other funds - . 501 - . -
Puo from agency funds - - - - - .
Dug from other govemmenss - - 38,293 3,884 14,615 32,059

TOTAL ASSETS 105,615 13,870 44,004 3,884 £4,633 32,0i%

LIABILETIES

Accounts payable - - - - . {11,602)
. Acerucd Liabilities - - - - - .
Cash Bonds liabilities - - - - - -
Due to ether fands 47,282 13,895 75,636 5,050 14,635 16,354
Dug te agency funds - - - . - B
Duyz to other govemmeats - - - - - .

TOTAL LIABILITIES 47,282 13,895 75,636 5,090 T 14605 4,752

PEFERRET INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Income camed in future periods - - " N i
Fees collected in advance - - - - -

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLQWS OF RESOURCES - - - . . .
FUND BALANCES

Nonspeadable
Prepaid items - - - - - .
Resiricted for:
Judicial - .
Fublig safety 58,333 (25) - - -
Road improvements - . - - . .
Coun activilies - - - - - -
Culture end reereation - - - - - 21,307
Housing and development - - - - - -
Committed for. - - - - - - .
Culture and recreation - - - - . .
Assigned for: .
Housing and development - - -
Unassigied - - (31,632) {1,208) - -

TOTAL FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT) 58,333 (25) (31,632) {1,206) - 27,207

TOTAL 105,615 13,870 44,004 _ 3,884 14635 32,089

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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COMBINING BALANCE SHEET -
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE GOYERNMENTAL FUNDS (CONTINUED)

CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA

SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

ASSETS

Cash and cash ¢guivalents
Investments

Cash bonds on hand
“Taxes reccivable
Accounts recrivable
Notes receivably

Interest receivable
Propatd itoms

Dug from other funds
Dug from agency fonds
Dug from other govemments

TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES .

Accounts payable
Accrued lizbilities

Cash Bonds liabilitics
Due to other fands

Due to agency funds

Due to other govemments

TOTAL LIABILITIES

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Income vamed in future periods
Fees colleeted in advance

TOTAL DEFE‘RREDJNFLO“'S OF RESOURCES
FUND BALANCES

Nenspendable
Prepaid items
Restricted for:
Judicial
Public safety
Road improvements
“ Courl agtivities
Culture and recreation
Housing and development R
Cemmitted for:
- Culture and cercation
Assigned fer: )
Houslng and development
Unassigned

TOTAL FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT)

TOTAL

JAG Recovery JAG JAG

UDAG

Act Grant 2009 Grant 2011 Grant Revolving Loan

Fund Fund Fund

Fund

JAG City
2012 Grant Court
Fund Fund

2,865

$38.897

17,831 159,210
- 18,160

- 62,184

56],762

37,831 239,554

- 123,785
38,902 -
- 44,132

© ot 38,902 BRI

(72541) (513) -

Sh1.420

- 67,637
{1.071)

(2,541) (513) ©A421)

561,420

{1,071) 67,637

430 4d] 34

561,762

37,831 239,554

See accompanying noles to the basic finan;ia! statements
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COMBINING BALANCE SHEET -

SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 .

CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (CONTINUED)

ASSETS

Cash and cash cquivalents
[avestments

Cash bonds on hand
Taxes receivable
Accounts meeivable
Notes reecivable

Interust receivable
Prepatd ftems

Bug from other funds

Dug from ageney fonds
Due from other goveniments

TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES

Accounts payable
Accrued liahilitics

Cash Bonds liabilitics
Due 1o other fonds

Due to ageney funds

Due to elher govemments

TOTAI; LIABILITIES

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Tncome eamed in fulure periods
Fzes collected in advance

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
FUND BALANCES

Nonspendable

Prepaid items
Restneled for:

Judicial

Public safety

Road improvenignts

Courl activities

Culture and recrvation

Heusing and development =
Committed for:

Culture and re¢reaion
Assigned for:

Honsing and development
Unassigned

TOTAL FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT)

TOTAL

Drug Task
Cemetery Foree Office

Fund Fund

Total
Noenmajor
Special Revenue
Funds

419,434

4,143,043
340,723
18,160

167
558,897
12,571
7,991

107,894

649,434

5,246,952

432,050

240,31

3t
21,820
123,783
1,035,032
48,132

432,050

240,313

HoR,207

1,228,507

148,207

(432,050}

168,207

240,694

{432,050)

240,894

926

168,207

67,637
1,832,944
173,356

27,307

960,358

561,420

(473,084}

3,849,938

649,434

96

35,246,952

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA

Muoseum of Seven Alabama Emergency
Nalural History Gasoline Cent Gus Trust Correclions Shelter Grant
Fund Fund Fund Fund - Fund ~ Fund

REYENUES

Intergovemmental 34,300 - - - - LYR L]

Fines and forfeilunes - - - - 293,434 -

Charges for services 232,008 - - - - -

Taxes 25,000 91,510 113,325 521,641 - -

Interest camed 2,399 - . - 291 .
- Misceltaneous 170,894 - - - - -
TOTAL REYENUES 464,601 91,510 113,325 521,64] 206411 51814
EXPENDITURES

General government - . - - - -

Judicial - - - - - -

Public safcty - - - 35,660 - -

Public works - - - . N .

Culture and reereation 907,336 - - - . .

Public facilitics . - - - - - -

Housing and development x - - - - - 50416

Capital cutlay 133,075 - - 1,253,225 - -
TOTAL EXFENDITURES 1,040,411 - - 1,293,885 - 59,016
EXCESS {DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES

OVYER EXPENDITURES (575.810) 01,510 113,325 (772,244} 296,411 (1,142)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {USES)

Proceeds from sale of assets - - - - - -

Transfers in i 555,000 344,027 - - - -

Trranisfers out - - (344,027) - (534,568) .
TOTAL OTHER FIN;\NCING

S0URCES (USES) 555,000 344,027 (344,027) - (534,568) -
NET CHANGE IN FUND DALANCES {20,810) 435,537 (230,702) (772.244) (238,157) 0,147
FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), BEGINNING 941,168 (421,594} 539,845 1,322,544 1,782,295 1,000

{142)

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), ERD 960,358 13,943 309,143 550,270 1,544,138

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -

CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE GOYERNMENTAL FUNDS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 34, 2013

REYENUES
Intergovemmental
Fings and forfeitures
Charges for scrvices
Taxes
nterest camed
Miscellancous

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
General government
Judicial
Public safety
Public works
Culure and recaeation
Public facilities
Housing md development
Capital ontlay

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY} OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Procceds from sale of assets
Transfers in
Transfers cut

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES)

NET-CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES
FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), BEGINNING

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), END

Federal State Public Bulletproof Airport Airport
Seized Assels Seized Assets Salfety Grant Yest Grant Wildlife Grant 2009
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Pund
- 10,000 151,655 5,532 21,644 23,635
- 10,000 151,655 5,532 21,644 23,635
3,149 13,538 199,632 11,064 .
- - - 22,783 24,879
8,149 13,538 197,632 11,064 22,783 24,879
{§,149) {3,538) (45,977 (5,332} (1,139 (1,244)
- - - 5,532 1,1y 1,244
- - - 5,532 1,139 1,244
(8,14%) {3,538y {45,977) - - -
66,482 3,513 14,343 {1,206) - 27.307
58,33 {25} (31!632! (I,ZEIE;)l - 27,307

See accompaiying notes to the basic financial statements
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
NONMAJOR SPECJAL REVENUE GOYERNMENTAL FUNDS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA

REVENUES
[ntergovemmeantal
Fines and forfaituros
Charges for services
Taxes
Interest camed

- Miscellancous

TOTAL REYENUES

EXPENDITURES
Oenemt govemment
Judicial
Public safety
Public works
Culture and recreation
Public facikities
Housing and development
Capital culfay

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REYENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds fions sale of assets
Transfers in
“Fransfers ot

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES
FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), BEGINNING

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), END

JAG Recovery JAG JAG URAG JAG Cily
Act Grant 2009 Grant 2011 Grant Revolving Loan 2012 Grant Court
Fund Fiind Fund Fund Fund Fund
- 18,885 59,200 22,155
. . - 24,682
- 407 -
. 283 .
- - 3R885 G90 59,290 46,837
- - 17,738 60,370
17,738 60,370
21,547 690 (1,071) 46,837
21,147 690 (1,071) 6,837
(7.541) (513} (30,568) 560,730 20,800
(7,541) (513) {9,421) 361420 (1,071) 67,637

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - '
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Total
Drup Task JAG Nonmajor
Cemetery Force Olfice 2010 Grant Special Revenue
Fund Fund Fund Funds

REYENUES

Intergovernmental - - 96 425,075

Fineg and forfeitures . - 427,019 - 745,135

Charges for services: - - - 232,008

Taxes - - . 751,476

Interest eamed - 1 - 5,700

Miscellancous - 31929 - 175,106

1

TOTAL REYENUES - 430,955 ' 926 2,334,390
EXPENDITURES

Geneml government 450 - - 430

Hudictal - - - -

Public safety - 98,354 - 442,508

Public works - - - -

Culture and reercaticn - - - - 954,998

Public facilities ! - - - -

1lousing and development - - - 59,016

Capital autlay - - - 1,391,300
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 450 98,354 - 2,848,269
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REYERUES

OYER EXPENDITURES (450} 332,601 96 (513,679}
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Proceeds from sale of assets - - - .

Transfers in - 64.322 - 971,264

Transfers oot . - (30%.94)) - {1, 188,536}
TOTAL OTIIER FINANCING

SOURCES {USES) - (245,619) . (217,212)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES {450) 86,982 % (730,951
FUNT BALANCES (DEFICIT}), BEGINNING (431,600} 153912 - 4,580,839
FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), END {432,050} 2411894 26 3,849,933

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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COMPLIANCE SECTION




Kemp & Assoc1ates, CPA PC

Certified Public Accountants
303 East 11th Streete P. 0. Box 2309
: ~ Anniston, Alabama36202
(256) 237-5102 ¢ FAX (256) 237-8185

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Honorable Mayror and Members of the City Council
City of Anniston, Alabama

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States, the financial statements of thé governmental activities, the business-type activities, the
aggregate dlscrete]y presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of
the City of Anniston, Alabama as of and for the year ended September 30, 2013, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise City of Anniston, Alabama's basic financial statements, and have
issued our report thereon dated January 22, 2014,

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and. performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered City of Anniston, Alabama’s
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of,
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of City of Anniston, Alabama’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness. of City of Anniston, Alabama’s intemal control.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph and was not
designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that mlght be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.
However, as described below, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control that we consider fo be material

weaknesses.

A deficiency in internal conirol exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their ass:gned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficigncies, in internal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. We consider the deficiéncies described in the
accompanying schedule of fi ndmgs and questioned cost as items 2013-01 and 2013-02 to be material weaknesses.

A s:gmﬁcant'deﬁcaency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies; in internal control that is less severe than a
material weaknéss, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. We consider the
deficiencies described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned cost as items 2013-03 and 2013-04
to be significant deficiencies.



~ Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonabie assurance about whether Clty of Anmston Alabama s fi nanmal statements are free
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,. regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could -have a direct and r_naterlal effect on the
‘determination of financial statement amounts, However; providing an opinion on- cOmpliance with those provisions
“was not an objective of our audit; and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.- The results of our tests
- .disclosed instances of noncompllance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standard and which are descrlbed in the accompanymg schedule of findings and questioned ¢osts as item 2013-05.

City ¢ of Anmston, Alabama s Response to Fmdmgs
City of Anniston, Alabama ] response to the fi ndmgs idenitified in our audit is descr:bed in the accompanying

schedule of findings and questioned costs. - City of Anniston, Alabama’s respofise was not subjected to the auditing
- procedures applled in the audlt of‘ the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Purpose of this,Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the 'scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Aud;tmg
Standards in considering the entity’s internal contro! and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not
suitable for any other purpose. ‘

, b [pevinte, (PE

cemp & Assofiates, CPAs PC
' Anniston, Alabama
June 16, 2014



Kemp & Assoclates, CPA PC

. Certifiéd Public Accountants
303 East 11th Strect ® P. O. Box 2309
_ Anniston, Alabama 36202
{256) 237-5102  FAX (256) 237-8185

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE 'FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY OMB CIRCULAR A-133

Honorable Mayor and Mefnbe_:rs of the City Council
City of Anniston, Alabama

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited the City of Anniston, Alabama’s comphance with the types of compliance requirements described
in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of the City
of Anniston, Alabama’s major federal programs for the year ended September 30, 2013. The City of Anniston,
Alabama’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs,

Management’s Responsibility

Management is respensible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulatlons contracts, and grants
applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on-compliance of the City of Anniston, Alabama’s major federal program
based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of
compliance in accordance with auditing standards géneral accepted in the United States of America; the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non- Prafit Organizations.
Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
" about whether noncomphance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct
and material effect on a major federal program occutred. An audit includes examining on a test basis, evidence
about City of Anniston, Alabama’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we

considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for the major federal program.
However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of City of Anniston, Alabama’s compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Program

In our opinion, the City of Anniston, Alabama complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal program for
the year ended September 30, 2013, :



Othér-Matters

The results of our audltmg procedures disclosed instances of noncomphance whlch are required to be. reported in
accordance with OMB Circular A-133 -and which are described in the accompanylng schedule of findings and
questioned costs as item 2013-05. Our opinion of each major federal program is not modified with respect to these
matters, ;

City of Anniston, Alabama’s response to the noncompliance findings identified in our audit is described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned. costs. City of Anniston, Alabama response was not subjected to
the auditing procedures apphed in the audit of compllance and, accordmgly, WE EXpress no opinien-on the response,

Report on lnternal Control Over Compliance

Management of the City of Anniston, Alabama, is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal

_control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing
our audit of compliance, we considered the City of Anniston, Alabama’s internal control over compliance with the
types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on its major federal program to determine the
auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purposes of expressing an opinion on
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance
with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control
over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Anniston,
Alabama’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis.
A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be -.
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not
been identified. As discussed below, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we

consider to be significant deficiencies.

A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than
a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with govenance. We consider the deficiencies in internal control over compliance described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2013-05 to be significant deficiencies.

City of Anniston, Alabama’s response to the internal control over compliance findings identified in our audit is
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. City of Anniston, Alabama’s response
was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no
opinion on the response.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of OMB Circular A-133,

Accordingly, this report is not suited for any other purpose.

W%W% dpa AL

Anniston, Alabama
June 16, 2014



SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA

' FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Ex penditures

Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Program Title CFDA Number
U.S. Department of Transportation
Passed through the Alabama Department of Transportatlon -
2009 Ail‘pOl‘t Grant 20.106 - § 45279
Transportation lmprovemerit Programn 20,205 22,814
Transportatlon Imptovement Program 20.205 31,913
) Subtotal Transportation Improvement Program 54,727
Total U.S, Department of Transporiation 100,006
LIRN Departhent of Justice
Direct Award.
Justice Assistance Grant 16.738 - 77,037
-Bulletproof Vest Partnership Program 16.607 5,532
COPS Hiring Program — Recovery Act 16,710 144,050
Subtotal Direct Awards 226,619
Passed through the Alabama Department of Economic and Community
.Affairs _
Justice Assistance Grant 16.738 148,343
Subtotal Alabama Department of Economic and Community Affairs 148,343
Total U.S. Department of Justice 374,962
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Direct Award
Community Development Block Grants — Recovery Act 14.253 222,367
Emergency Shelier Grant Program 14.231 112,779
HOME Investment Partnership Grant Prognam 14,239 834,680
Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 1,169,826
U.S. Department of Defense
Direct Award
Surplus from the Defense Reutilization and Marketing Service 12.unknown 180,000
Total U.S. Department of Defense 180,000
Appalachian Regional Commission
Direct Award :
Chief Ladiga Trail Development 23 .unknown 36,880

_ Total Appalachian Regional Commission

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards
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36,880

3 1,861,674
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NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA
FEDERAL AWARDS . o

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

NOTE 1. B'ASI'S'OF PR-ESENTATION‘

.The accompanying schedule of expend1tures of federal awards includes the federal grant act1v1ty of the City of
-Anniston, Alabarmia (the “City”) and is presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting. The information in
‘this schedule is presented in accordance with the requitements'of OMB Circular A-133, “Audits of States, Local

Governments and Non-Profit Orgamzations * Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may dlﬁ'er from
. amounts presented in, or used in the preparatmn of the financial statements.

NOTE 2. SUBRECIPIENTS

During the fiscal year ended September 30, 2013 dlsbursements were made to subrecnplents of the following grant
program: :

, CFDA - _

Program _ ~_ Number Expenditures

Community Development Block Grant Cluster — Recovery Act - 14.253 $ 59,766
"Emergency Shelter Grant Program 14,231 - 111,780

$ 171,546

L)
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'SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2013
SECTION I - SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS
Financial Statements | |

Type of auditor’s report issued -

Internal control over financial repotting;
Material weaknesses identified?

Significant deficiencies identified not considered
to be material weaknesses?.

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?-

Federal Awards

Internal Control over major programs: Material
weaknesses identified?

Significant deficiencies identified not considered
to be material weaknesses?

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for
major programs

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported
in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, Section 510(a}

Identifiéation of major programs:

CFDA Number
14.239

J6.710
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between

Type A and Type B programs:

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

73

Unqualified
X _yes no
X __yes no
X __yes no

yes _ X no

X yes ho
Unqualified
X __yes no

Name of Federal Program or Cluster
HOME Investment Partmership Grant
Program

COPS Hiring Program

$300,000

yes __X __ ne

L X%



SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA

' FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

2013 SECTION I - FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS AND RESPONSES
2013 -01 - Anniston Mﬁseuni Cohiplex Operaﬁohs—lntgrna_l Control
MATERIAL WEAKNESS

Condlitions: At the request of the City’s management we performed a “Specml Examination Report of the Anmston
Museum Complex.” The following is a summary of the report:

1. MusAnn Corporation, Inc. - A blended component unit; .
; a. In our testing of processing invoices and payments, we discovered violations of policies
procedures.
b.  In our testing of online purchases, we discovered the staff did not following policies and
procedures.
c.  The annual budget as required in accordance with “By-Laws” was not developed for approval.
d  We noted several weaknesses in the internal control over personnel and payroll processing and

reporting.

2. Anniston Museum of Natural History - A department of the City:
a. In our testing of processing invoices and payments, we discovered violations of policies and

procedures.

b. In our testing of online purchases, we discovered the staff did not following policies and
procedures.

¢.  We noted several weaknesses in the internal control over personnel and payrol] processing and
reporting.

d.  We determined that administrators did not file the “Statement of Economic Interest” as required

by Alabama Ethics Law.
€. The City’s management failed to properly monitor the Museum’s operations. Monitoring
operations is an essential element of an effective internal controls system.

Criteria: A detail explanation of the criteria that we used to base our findings on is in the “Special Examination
Report of the Anniston Museum Complex”.

Causes: Executive Director and Business Manager of the MusAnn Corporation, Inc. and Anniston Museum of
Natural History failed to follow policies and procedures. The City failed to properly monitor the Anniston Museum

of Natural History.

Effect: Failure to both follow policies and procedures and monitor resulted in potentially having unallowed
expenses recorded, misclassified expenses, potentially having allowed excess compensation, and violating laws and
‘reguiations.

Recommendanons Qur recommendat:ons are detaiied in the “Special Exammatlon Report of the Anniston Museum
“Complex”.

Views of Responsible Officials: The City has implemented a cotrective action plan, see attached,
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS CITY OF ANNISTON, ALAB_AMA

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 .

- 2013 SECTION II - FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS AND RESPONSE_S (CONTINUED)
2013-02 - Due from Other Governmiental Entiti:es was overstated.

. MATERIAL WEAKNESS -

' Conditions: In a test of amounts Due from Other Governmental Entities, we discovered that the beginning balance

of the amount due from HUD in the CDBG Special Revenue Fund was overstated by $209,561.06. It was
determined at September 30, 2013, the amount ‘due from HUD. was $13,043.37; however the general ledger
indicated amount due was $222,604.43. According to the staff, the beginning balance was overstated by
$209,561.06. )

Criteria: Internal controls should have been in place that provides reasonable assurance that amounts Due from
Other Governmental Entities is recorded at the appropriate balance.

Causes: Finance Department failure to record prior year adjusting entries and follow up on actual amount due from
HUD,

Effect: Failure to record prior year adjusting entries resulted in overstatement in amount due from HUD, on the
financial statements. An adjusting entry has been made to adjust account to appropriate balance,

Recommendations: We recommend prior to close out of the general ledger in preparation of the financial statements
that the City verify the correct amounts due from other governmental entities as well as other accounts receivables.

Views of Responsible Officials: The City has implemented a corrective action plan, see attached.
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* SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

: 2013 SECTION II - FiNA’NCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS AND RESPONSES (CONTINUED)
2013-03 Expendltures exceeded the budget that was adopted and approved by the Clty Councll

SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCY

Condrt:ons The followmg procedures are used by the C:ty in establishing the budgetary data reﬂected in the
financial statements:

1. Prior to October 1, the City Manager submits to the City Council proposed operating budgets for

the fiscal year comtnencing October 1. '

2. Public hearings are conducted at City Hall to obtain taxpayer comments.
Prior to October 1, the budget is legally enacted through the passage of a resolution,
The City Manager is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts within departments of any fund,
however, any revisions to the total expendltures of any fund or department must be approved by
the City Council.
5.  Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device durmg the year for all

governmental funds,

oW

State law prohibits any municipality from making e)tpenditures in excess of budgeted amounts unless the actual
revenue is more than the budgeted amounts,

The following funds had excesses of actual expenditures over budgeted amounts as originally adopted, or as
amended by the City Council for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2013.

General Government

Finance Division $ 11,773
General Division 2,390
City Council 3,686
Professional Services 109,500
Utilities ) 2,975
Workman’s Compensatlon Insurance 36,061
Employer Funded Healthcare _ 316,410
Other Insurance _ o 28,867
Miscellaneous 284,148
Public Safety ' '
| Police B 175,230
Municipal Court 7,113
Detention Facilities : 17,946
Fire ' 7 - 119,991
Public Works

General ' 8,310
Cemetery ' | 3,088
Garage . . _ 19,737

" Environmental Services i 44118
Street Department . 160,654
Planning . ' 17,202
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

2013 SECTION I - FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS AND RESPONSES (CONTINUED)

2013-03 - Expenditures 'excqeded the budget that was.adopted and approved by the _City_(i‘ouncil (Continued).

Culture and Recreations

Administration - : | 96,968
Parks, facilities and utilities 57,895
PARD Program 40,210
Park Maintenance _ 15,548

. City Bd of Education - appropriation 121,600

Crireria: Per State Law, the City’s expenditures should not exceed budget amounts, unless revenues exceed budget
amounts to cover the expenditure. As an essential part of internal controls, the budget is monitored to 1). monitor
expenditures and 2). identify areas where misstatements and fraud could potentially occur.

Causes: After the budget was amended on July -1, 2013, the City had major unexpected expenditures. The
expenditures affect several line items of the budget. The expenditures were approved by City Council; however, the
budget was not amended to reflect the expenditures.

Effect: In order for the City to be incompliance with State Law, the City must stay within the approved budget.
Failure to amend the budget to include the purchase of the Victoria Inn & Suites and the Retirement Buyout resnlted

in the_City exceeding its budget.
Recommendations: We recommend the Finance Department periedicaily prepare financial reports to compare year-

to-date expenditures with budgeted amounts. The City Council should only approve expenditure resolutions that are
within the budget. If an expenditure resolution is not within the budget, the budget needs to be amended and

approved by City Council.

Views of Responsible Officials: The City agrees with the finding and corrective procedures have been implemented.
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS ~ CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 -

2013 SECTION II - FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS AND RESPONSES (CONTINUED)
2013—04 — Capital Assets was understated
' SIGNIF[CANT DEFICIENCY

Conditions: The Clty s capltahzatlon pohcy is to capltallze a capital asset with a purchase cost of $5,000 or higher.
In our review of fixed assets, we discovered three capital assets with a total cost of $69,000 were not capitalized in
accordance with the capitalization pollcy

Criteria: Intemal controls’ shou]d have been in place that provide reasonable assurance that capital purchases over
$5,000 or higher are capitalized. : :

Causes: Finance Departmeht failure to review capital expenditures and identify capital purchases over $5,000.

Effect: Failure to capitalize the assets resulted in understatement in capitalized assets and overstatement of
expenditures of $69,000 on the financial statements. An adjusting entry has been made to adjust the account to the
appropriate balance. :

Recommendations: We recommend prior to close out of the general ledger in preparation of the financial statements
that the City review capital expenditures and identify and reclassify expenditures over $5,000 for an asset with a life
over two years to capital assets.

Views.of Responsible Officials: The City agrees with the finding and corrective procedures have been implemented. =
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS " CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013
2013 SECTION 111 - FEDERAL AWARDS FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COST
Dep'a'rtment of Housing and Urban Development
' 2013-5 HOME Investment Partnershlp Grant .Program —CFDA No. 14.239;
Grant Period — Year énded September 30,2013 .

SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCY

~ Conditions: The  Department of Housing and Urban Development does not list. specifically what
documentation should be .maintained; however, Code of Federal Regulations Title 24 — Housing and' Urban
[Development Section 92.508 (a) Recordkeeping states “Each participating jurisdiction must establish and maintain
sufficient records to enable HUD to determine whether the participating jurisdiction has met the requirements of this
part.” 15 of 18 HOME loan file were tested for documentation supporting HUD requirements, Of the 15 tested the
following documentation was missing from the Joan. files at the time of the fieldwork: - Homeowrier’s Property Deed
— 2 missing, Insurance ~ 1 missing, On-site monitoring — 3 missing, Checking for disbarment — 5 missing, bid list
information - 3 missing, and Agreement between Anniston/ Calhoun County Home Consortium and Homeowners —
| missing. ' . '

Criteria: Documentation verifying that the City provided assistance that meet criteria set by HUD should be
maintained.

Cause: Clear procedures were not in place to ensure that documentation that satisfied HUD’s requirements were
properly maintained. The management of the Community Development Department, which is responsible for the
HUD programs, changed in October 2013 as a response to previous audit findings.

Effect: The cost of the assistance may be disallowed and refunded to HUD if documentation is not provided.

Recommendation: The City needs to establish a method (such as, checklists) to ensure that all required
documentation are received from homeowners-and that bids were perforined, monitoring was performed, disbarment
checked, and all signed agreements are maintained.

Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Actions: The City has implemented a corrective action plan,
see attached.
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SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS . : CITY OF ANNISTON, ALA_BAMAV

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

2012 - SECTION II- FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS AND RESPONSES
None | 7
2012 - SECTION Il - FEDERAL AWARDS FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COST

- During t'est'ing of compliance performed for the period of October 1, 2011 thru September 30, 2012, we did not have
any findings. ' .

During the course of our audit, U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) released results of an
“On-site Monitoring Revif:_w” they performed on the HOME Investment Partnership Program (Home) (CFDA
'14.239). The monitoring report released was dated September 17, 2012. The following are five findings detérmined
by HUD: :

Department of Housing and Urban Development
2012-01 - HOME Income Limits

Condition: The participating jurisdiction (PJ) funded the Northeast Alabama CDC (CHDO) to acquire, rehabilitate,
and rent three houses. The CHDO completed two of the houses and rented one of them to an over income family.

Current Status: The recommendation was adopted April 2013. No similar findings were noted in 2013 audit.

2012-02 - Program Income Usage

Condition: Since the inception of the HOME program, the city reported to HUD in the IDIS system it had received .
$3,866.62 in program income. Specifically, the city reported it had received program amounts of $397.99 in 2009,
$2,246.08 in 2010, and $1,222.55 in 2011. During the on-site review of program income, our financial analyst
requested the city accounting records for program income receipts during the time frame of February 1, 2012 - July
31, 2012. Said records showed that the city had received $7,911.73 in program income over the six month period.
During the six month peried reviewed, the city had received $4,045.11 more in program income then had been
reported over the entire program. As such, it is clear the city has failed to correctly report and use in IDIS progfam
income. ’

Current Status: The recommendation was adopted in April 2013. No similar findings were noted in 2013 audit.
20%2-03 - Incorrect reporting

Condition: As noted above, the city has not been reporting program income that it has received. Additionally, the
city has been drawing down funds for entitlement costs under the administrative funds in IDIS, Under IDIS activity
numbers 584 and 633, the city wiade draws for entitlement cost, yet drew those cost under the administrative fund
type. Under activity 622, the city’s HOME administration activity, the city made a draw for entitlement cost under
the administration activity and with the administration fund type.

Current Status: The recommendation was adopted in April 2013. No similar findings were noted in 2013 audit.
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SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS © CITY OF ANNISTON, ALABAMA

FOR THE YEAR ENDE_D SEPTEMBER 30,2012 ‘

' 20[2 SECTION III FEDERAL AWARDS FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COST (CONTINUED)

2012:04 - Procurement Contractor

Condition: The city failed to advertise for a seal bid for IDIS actmty 584, The city used the seaied bid process to -
procure a contractor.-for a housing rehabilitation pro_|ect However, the city only sent bid packages out to contractors
-on its pré-qualified list. This is not only a requnrement of the federal regulations cited below, but part of the city’s
procurement policy, which is more stringent than the federal requirements and therefore must he followed.

Current Status: The rédommendatioh was adopted in April 2013. No similar findings were noted in the 2013 audit.
2012-05 - Procurement — Conéultants

Condition: Based on documentatlon prowded and reviewed, the grantee failed to comply w1th the procurement
requirements. of 24 CFR§85 36, as well as the city’s own procurement policy in its procurement of consulting
services for the HOME program for the city and paid for with HOME funds. While on-site, multiple requests were
made for documentation of procurement that was done for.the purpose of obtaining HOME consulting services. The
city was unable to provide any documentation that would indicate any procurement was completed.

Current Status: The recommendation was adopted April 2013. No similar findings were noted in 2013 audit.
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CITYOFANNISTON
P.O.Box 2168
ANNISTON, AL 36202

Please find below the responses to the audit findings for the year ended
September 30, 2013,

2013-01: As of April 2014, the City formed the Department of Museum Operations to
manage the City's museum assets. The City has brought financial operations of the
Anniston Museum of Natural History, a department of the City, and MusAnn Corporation,
Inc. into the Financial Department of the City. All purchasing, personnel related
transactions, budgeting and other related operations will run through the Finance
Department in accordance with established City policy. MusAnn Corporation, Inc. will be
dissolved before 9/30/2014 and its assets rolled directly into the City.

2013-02: All receivables will be reconciled yearly during year-end close out to prevent
overstatement.

2013-03: The Finance Department now prepares monthly budget to actual reports that
are presented to the City Council for review. A cumulative list of anticipated
expenditures outside of budget is presented with this report. Additional budget
amendments will be made as necessary as approved by the City Council.

2013-04: Expenditures will be reviewed to find and class capital purchases appropriately
for inclusion in the capital assets listing.

2013-05: Checklists have been prepared for the files and the contents of the files will be
updated.

Name: 1} -P“Q)Ux_
[ 3

Title: N TELIM_FINANCE DIPECTDR







